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APAG Holding AG, Pfaffikon SZ

As statutory auditors, we have examined the financial statements (balance sheet, profit and loss statement
and notes) of APAG Holding AG for the year ended 31 March 2025.

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Board of Directors. Our responsibility is to perform
a limited statutory examination on these financial statements. We confirm that we meet the licensing and
independence requirements as stipulated by Swiss law.

We conducted our examination in accordance with the Swiss Standard on the Limited Statutory Examina-
tion. This standard requires that we plan and perform a limited statutory examination to identify material
misstatements in the financial statements. A limited statutory examination consists primarily of inquiries
of company personnel and analytical procedures as well as detailed tests of company documents as
considered necessary in the circumstances. However, the testing of operational processes and the internal
control system as well as inquiries and further testing procedures to detect fraud or other legal violations
are not within the scope of this examination.

Based on our limited statutory examination, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe
that the financial statements and the proposed appropriation of available earnings do not comply with
Swiss law and the company’s articles of incorporation.

We draw attention to the fact that the APAG Holding AG is over indebted in the meaning of Art. 725b CO.
The Board of Directors have disclosed the remediation plan in note 4.6 "Significant events after the balance
sheet date", by which the company entered into an increase of capital and agio by a convertible loan agree-
ment for a total amount of EUR 5 248 534 as well as the creditor subordinated his claim totalling

EUR 4 188 224. Based on the subordinated agreement dated 5 Mai 2025, the Board of Directors have re-
frained from notifying the court.

Zurich, 15 May 2025

WPF/DTO

Balmer-Etienne AG

—
W E Q L L4
Werner PFaffli Denis Tornare

Licensed audit expert Licensed audit expert

(Auditor in charge)

Financial statements (balance sheet, profit and loss statement and notes)
Proposed appropriation of available earnings

Anind d b EXPERTSsUI Certified
UHY o insependent member gl EXPERTsufsse Certife ACCOUNTING - AUDIT - ADVISORY



APAG Holding AG, Pfaffikon Sz

Balance sheet

Assets
Notes March 31, 2025 prior year

EUR CHF CHF
Current assets 0.96233
Cash, cash equivalents and
marketable securities 2.1 1645 1583 4337
Other current receivables 2.2 54 409 52 359 117 420
Accrued income and prepaid expenses 2.3 40 881 39 341 27 385
Current assets 96 935 93 283 149 143
Non-current assets
Financial assets 2.4 5064 160 4873 393 5942 061
Investments 4.3 7101478 6 833 965 7 023 291
Non-current assets 12 165 638 11 707 359 12 965 352
Assets 12 262 573 11 800 642 13 114 495




APAG Holding AG, Pfaffikon Sz

Liabilities and equity

Balance sheet

Notes March 31, 2025 prior year

EUR CHF CHF
Liabilities
Trade payables 89 134 85776 34 175
Other current liabilities 25 1072743 1032 333 476 136
Deferred income and accrued expenses 2.6 39 548 38058 20 000
Current liabilities 1201 425 1156 167 530 311
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 2.7 14 061 379 13 531 687 7 417 020
Non-current liabilities 14 061 379 13 531 687 7 417 020
Liabilities 15 262 804 14 687 854 7947 331
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 531 076 511 070 520 000
General legal reserves 106 215 102 214 60 000
Legal reserves from retained earnings 106 215 102 214 60 000
Free reserves 16 475 431 15 854 802 16 344 311
Translation adjustments 807 366 776 953 0
Available earnings (-loss) brought forward -11 888 035 -11 440 213 -837 304
Net profit for the year / (-net loss for the year) -9 032 284 -8 692 038 -10 919 844
Unrestricted reserves from retained earnings -3 637 522 -3 500 497 4587 164
Shareholders’ equity -3 000 231 -2887 212 5167 164
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity 12262573 11800 642 13 114 495




APAG Holding AG, Pfaffikon SZ Profit & loss statement

Notes 01.4.2024 - 31.3.2025 prior year
EUR CHF CHF
0.96233
Other revenues (interest on IC loans) 257 057 247 373 509 353
Net revenue from deliveries and services 257 057 247 373 509 353
Dividend 0 0 0
Gross profit 257 057 247 373 509 353
Administrative expenses -507 978 -488 842 -168 255
Administrative and distribution expenses -507 978 -488 842 -168 255

Operating earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT)

-250 921 -241 469 341 098
Finance income / -expenses 2.8 -254 606 -245 015 -106 552
Net financial result -254 606 -245 015 -106 552
Operating earnings before taxes (EBT) -505 527 -486 484 234 546
Extraordinary expense -8 525 202 -8 204 058 -11 123 233
Extraordinary income 0 0 0
Extraordinary, non-recurring or prior-period expenses and
income 4.4 -8 525 202 -8 204 058 -11 123 233
Profit before taxes -9 030 729 -8 690 542 -10 888 687
Income taxes -1 555 -1 497 -31 157

Net profit for the year / (-Net loss for the year) -9.032 284 -8 692 038 -10 919 844




APAG Holding AG, Pféaffikon Sz

Explanationary notes to the financial statements 2024/2025
March 31, 2025

Notes

prior year

EUR CHF
0.96233

1 Information on the accounting principles applied
These financial statements were drawn up in accordance with the regulations
of the Swiss Code of Obligations (CO), in particular with the requirements in
Art. 957 to 962 concerning financial accounting and reporting.

1.1  Financial reporting in EUR
Since the change of the functional currency as per 1 April 2024, the books
are maintained in EUR and therefore the financial statetements are
presented in EUR for the first time in the FY 2024-2025. The FX gain as a
result of the translation of the opening balances in EUR is presented in
Equity.

The numbers in CHF are only indicative for the FY 2025-25 , as the yearend
FX rate is used for the tanslation for both balance sheet and income statemnt
and therefore cannot be compare to the comparative prior year numbers
(functional currency CHF for the FY 2023-24), which have not been changed.

1.2 Financial assets and investments
Financial assets and investments are valued at lower of cost or market value
on an individual basis, except for European companies, which are
considered as a group, based on their business combination.

1.3 Foreign currency translation
Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at year-end rates,
whilst transactions in foreign currencies and the profit and loss accounts are
translated at monthly average exchange rates published by the Federal Tax
Administration (ESTV).

- Closing rate for 1 CHF (PY 1 EUR) 1.03914
- Closing rate for 1 USD 0.92307

- Closing rate for 1 CAD 0.64519
- Closing rate for 100 CZK 4.01808

2 Explanatory notes, details and disclosures related to positions in
the balance sheets and the profit and loss accounts

2.1 Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities
- Cash at banks 1645 1583

CHF

0.98899
0.91395
0.67341
3.90931

4 337

Total 1645 1583

4 337

2.2 Other current receivables
- Third parties 31322 30 142
- Directly or indirectly related parties 23 087 22 217

727
116 693

Total 54 409 52 359

117 420

2.3 Accrued income and prepaid expenses
- Prepaid expenses 40 881 39 341

27 385

Total 40 881 39 341

27 385

2.4  Financial assets
- Third parties 0
- Directly related parties (subordinated EUR 3.2 million) 5064 160 4873 393
- Corporate bodies 0 0

0
5942 061
0

Total 5064 160 4 873 393

5942 061




APAG Holding AG, Pféffikon SZ

Explanationary notes to the financial statements 2024/2025

Notes

March 31, 2025 prior year
EUR CHF CHF
0.96233
2.5 Other current liabilities
- Third parties 0 0 0
- Directly related parties 338 266 325523 20443
- Corporate bodies / Sharholder's 734 477 706 810 455 694
Total 1072 743 1032 333 476 136
2.6  Deferred income and accrued expenses
- Accrued expenses 39 548 38 058 20 000
Total 39 548 38 058 20 000
2.7 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (long-term)
- Directly or indirectly related parties 0 0
- Corporate bodies (EUR 4 188 224 / CHF 3 950 000 subordinated) 14 061 379 13 531 687 7 417 020
Total 14 061 379 13 531 687 7 417 020
2.8 Financial expenses /-income
Interest expenses on long-term liabilities 293014 281 976 239313
Other interest external 16 372 15 755 0
Bank charges and other financial expenses 1151 1108 4 450
Foreign exchange rate gains (-) / losses -55 931 -53 824 -137 211
Total 254 606 245 015 106 552
3 Net releases of replacement and further hidden reserves 0 0 0
4 Other details and information required by law
4.1 Business name, legal form and registered domicile
APAG Holding AG is a stock company incorporated under
Swiss law with registered domicile in Pfaffikon SZ.
4.2 Declaration of the average number of full-time equivalents
The number of full-time equivalents in the reporting period 0 0 0
4.3 Direct or significant indirect investments
APAG Elektronik AG, Pfaffikon SZ (CH)
Share capital EUR 510 650 (PY CHF 500 000)
Capital stock held directly 100.00% 100.00%
Proportion of voting rights 100.00% 100.00%
CoSyst control system GmbH, Nirnberg (Germany)
Share capital EUR 50 000
Capital stock held directly 100.00% 100.00%
Proportion of voting rights 100.00% 100.00%
APAG Elektronik s.r.0., Pardubice (Czech Republic)
Share capital CKZ 8 100 000
Capital stock held directly 100.00% 100.00%
Proportion of voting rights 100.00% 100.00%
APAG Elektronik LLC, Michigan (US)
Share capital USD 100
Capital stock held directly 100.00% 100.00%
Proportion of voting rights 100.00% 100.00%
APAG Elektronik Corp. Ontario (CAN) *
Share capital CAD 10 000
Capital stock held directly (indirect) 0.00% 0.00%
Proportion of voting rights (indirect) 0.00% 0.00%

Transferred to the APAG Elektronik AG (CH) as per 30 September 2021.



APAG Holding AG, Pféffikon SZ

Explanationary notes to the financial statements 2024/2025

Notes

March 31, 2025 prior year
EUR CHF CHF
0.96233
4.4 Extraordinary, non-recurring or prior-period expenses and income
- Extraordinary expenses (stamp duty on capital increase) 0 151 985
- extraordinary loss of waiver of loans 8 525 202 8 204 058 10 971 249
Total extraordinary expense 8 525 202 11 123 233
- Extraordinary income 0 0 0
Total extraordinary income 0 0
4.5 Valuation of loans
According to the outline of the group, the management expect that direct and
indirect subsidiaries (USA and Canada) financially recover within the next
future based on business plan and budgets we set up as a group.
4.6  Significant events after the balance sheet date

From the balance sheet date until the approval of the financial statements by
the Board of Directors, exept the below remediation of tge negative equity, no
major events occurred which could adversely affect the validity of the annual
financial statements or which would have to be disclosed.

Remediation of the negative equity as at 31 March 2025

The Company shows an over-indebtedness of EUR 3 000 231 in its balance
sheet as at 31 March 2025. With decisions of 7 Mai 2025, the Board
approved a remediation plan by which the Company entered into an increase
of capital and agio by a convertible loan agreement with Cosyst Holding AG,
Pféaffikon Sz, for a total amount of EUR 5 248 534 (CHF 4 950 000) in order
to reinstate its capital as at 31 March 2025.




APAG Holding AG, Pfaffikon SZ Profit appropriation

Proposed appropriation of available earnings

Méarz 31, 2025 prior year

EUR CHF

Available earnings brought forward -11 888 035 -837 304
Net profit for the year / (Net loss for the year) -9 032 284 -10 919 844
Transfer from reserves from capital contributions 0 0
Transfer from legal reserves from retained earnings 0 0
Transfer from unrestricted reserves 0 0
Available earnings / Accumulated losses -20 920 320 -11 757 148

The Board of Directors proposes to the General Meeting of Sharholders the following
appropriation of available earnings:

Payment of a dividend 0 0
Allocation to legal reserves 0 44 000
Removal from free reserves 0 -44 000

To be carried forward -20 920 320 -11 757 148
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APAG Elektronik AG, Pfaffikon SZ

As statutory auditors, we have examined the financial statements (balance sheet, Profit and loss account
and notes) of APAG Elektronik AG for the year ended 31 March 2025.

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Board of Directors. Our responsibility is to perform
a limited statutory examination on these financial statements. We confirm that we meet the licensing and
independence requirements as stipulated by Swiss law.

We conducted our examination in accordance with the Swiss Standard on the Limited Statutory Examina-
tion. This standard requires that we plan and perform a limited statutory examination to identify material
misstatements in the financial statements. A limited statutory examination consists primarily of inquiries
of company personnel and analytical procedures as well as detailed tests of company documents as
considered necessary in the circumstances. However, the testing of operational processes and the internal
control system as well as inquiries and further testing procedures to detect fraud or other legal violations
are not within the scope of this examination.

Based on our limited statutory examination, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe
that the financial statements and the proposed appropriation of available earnings do not comply with
Swiss law and the company’s articles of incorporation.

Zurich, 15 May 2025

WPF/DTO

Balmer-Etienne AG

Wil ST

Werner PFaffli Denis Tornare
Licensed audit expert Licensed audit expert
(Auditor in charge)

Financial statements (balance sheet, Profit and loss account and notes)
Proposed appropriation of available earnings

Anind dent b EXPERTSsUI Certified
UHY o insependent member gl EXPERTsufsse Certife ACCOUNTING - AUDIT - ADVISORY



APAG Elektronik AG, Pfaffikon SZ Balance sheet

Assets
Notes March 31, 2025 prior year

EUR CHF CHF
Current assets 0.96233
Cash, cash equivalents and
marketable securities 2.1 327 870 315519 20 164
Trade receivables 2.2 10 269 508 9 882 655 9625 287
Other current receivables 2.3 3075552 2 959 696 2786 641
Inventories 364 934 351 187 369 559
Inventories and unbilled services 2.4 364 934 351 187 369 559
Accrued income and prepaid expenses 25 580 862 558 981 167 702
Current assets 14 618 726 14 068 038 12 969 353
Non-current assets
Financial assets 2.6 1985 684 1910 883 9117 208
Investments 53 7893 7 596 7 806
Equipment, tools and devices 3256 140 3133481 1655 017
Fixed assets 3256 140 3133481 1655017
Intangible assets 2.7 93 889 90 352 146 861
Non-current assets 5 343 606 5142 312 10 926 892

Assets 19 962 332 19 210 351 23896 245




APAG Elektronik AG, Pfaffikon SZ Balance sheet

Liabilities and equity

Notes March 31, 2025 prior year

EUR CHF CHF
Liabilities
Trade payables 2.8 9 244 454 8 896 216 10882 713
Short-term financial liabilities 2.9 1053 220 1013 545 1180 630
Other current liabilities 2.10 15 280 14 705 1074 875
Deferred income and accrued expenses 211 419 524 403 721 452 798
Current liabilities 10 732 479 10 328 187 13 591 016
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 212 8832 690 8 499 963 8 569 453
Other long-term liabilities 2.13 11173 10 752 11 050
Provisions and similar items required by law 0 0 0
Non-current liabilities 8 843 863 8510 715 8 580 503
Liabilities 19 576 342 18 838 901 22171518
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 510 650 491 414 500 000
General legal reserves 255 325 245 707 250 000
Legal reserves from retained earnings 255 325 245 707 250 000
Translation adjustments -7 626 -7 339 0
Available earnings brought forward 985 578 948 451 779 807
Net profit for the year / (net loss for the year) -1 357 938 -1 306 784 194 920
Unrestricted reserves from retained earnings -372 360 -358 333 974 727
Shareholders’ equity 385 989 371 449 1724727

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity 19962332 19210351 23 896 245




APAG Elektronik AG, Pfaffikon SZ Profit and loss account

Notes 01.4.2024 - 31.3.2025 prior year
EUR CHF CHF
0.96233

Revenue from production, trade and services 68 215 560 65 645 879 72 363 373
Net revenue from deliveries and services 68 215 560 65 645 879 72 363 373
Operating income 68 215 560 65 645 879 72 363 373
Cost of goods and services -66 189 265 -63 695 915 -68 771 735
Change in inventory of unfinished and finished goods -40 456 -38 932 -186 010
Gross profit 1985 839 1911033 3405 628
Administration -982 158 -945 160 -1 069 415
Development 0 0 0
Sales 0 0 0
External Personnel Expenses -653 657 -629 034 -445 283
Personnel expenses 2.14 -1635 816 -1574 195 -1514 698
Capitalzed development costs 2.7 544 440 523931 0
Other operating expense -878 061 -844 984 -885 890

Operating earnings before interest, taxes,

depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) 16 403 15 785 1 005 040
Depreciation and amortization -261 487 -251 637 -287 133
Depreciation, amortization and valuation

adjustments -261 487 -251 637 -287 133

Operating earnings before interest and taxes
(EBIT) -245 084 -235 852 717 907




APAG Elektronik AG, Pfaffikon SZ Profit and loss account

Notes 01.4.2024 - 31.3.2025 prior year
EUR CHF CHF
0.96233

Exchange gain / loss -998 288 -960 682 -165 414
Finance expenses -656 496 -631 766 -915 817
Finance income 206 665 198 880 659 767
Net financial result -1448 119 -1 393 568 -421 463
Operating earnings before taxes (EBT) -1 693 203 -1 629 420 296 444
Extraordinary expense -8 279 222 -7 967 344 -11 179 157
Extraordinary income 8 615 222 8290 687 11 079 275
Extraordinary, non-recurring or prior-period costs
and income 5.6 336 000 323343 -99 882
Profit before taxes -1 357 203 -1 306 077 196 561
Income taxes -734 -707 -1642

Net profit (loss) for the year 1357938 -1306 784 194 920




APAG Elektronik AG, Pfaffikon SZ

Explanationary notes to the financial statements 2024/2025

Notes

March 31, 2025 prior year
EUR CHF CHF
0.96233
1 Information on the accounting principles applied
These financial statements were drawn up in accordance with the regulations
of the Swiss Code of Obligations (CO), in particular with the requirements in
Art. 957 to 962 concerning financial accounting and reporting.
1.1 Financial reporting in EUR
Since the change of the functional currency as per 1 April 2024, the books
are maintained in EUR and therefore the financial statetements are
presented in EUR for the first time in the FY 2024-2025. The FX gain as a
result of the translation of the opening balances in EUR is presented in
Equity.
The numbers in CHF are only indicative for the FY 2025-25 , as the yearend
FX rate is used for the tanslation for both balance sheet and income statemnt
and therefore cannot be compare to the comparative prior year numbers
(functional currency CHF for the FY 2023-24), which have not been changed.
1.1  Foreign currency translation
Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at year-end rates,
whilst transactions in foreign currencies and the profit and loss accounts are
translated at monthly average exchange rates published by the Federal Tax
Administration (ESTV).
- Closing rate for 1 CHF (PY 1 EUR) 1.03914 0.98899
- Closing rate for 1 USD 0.92307 0.91395
- Closing rate for 1 CAD 0.64519 0.60396
2 Explanatory notes, details and disclosures related to positions in
the balance sheets and the profit and loss accounts
2.1 Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities
- Cash 841 810 84
- Cash at banks 327 029 314 710 20 079
Total 327 870 315519 20 164
2.2 Trade receivables
- Third parties 11 346 854 10919 418 9579 074
- Other group companies and related parties 30653 29 499 0
- Shareholders 0 0 99 995
- Allowance for doubtful receivables -1 108 000 -1 066 262 -53 782
Total 10 269 508 9 882 655 9 625 287
2.3 Other current receivables
- Third parties 2 167 962 2086 295 2 464 076
- Directly or indirectly related parties 907 590 873 401 322 566
Total 3075 552 2 959 696 2786 641
2.4 Inventories and unbilled services
- Finished products 513 104 493 775 553 559
- Value adjustment / pending loss 0 0 0
- General valuation allowance -148 170 -142 588 -184 000
Total 364 934 351 187 369 559
2.5 Accrued income and prepaid expenses
- Prepaid expenses (following year) 244 592 235 378 165 270
- Accrued income 336 270 323 603 2432
Total 580 862 558 981 167 702
2.6 Financial assets
- Third parties 33984 32704 26 173
- Directly or indirectly related parties 1951 700 1878 179 9 091 035
Total 1985 684 1910 883 9117 208




APAG Elektronik AG, Pfaffikon SZ

Explanationary notes to the financial statements 2024/2025

Notes

2.7 Intangible assets

Software Capitalized Capitalized Capitalized TOTAL
development development development costs
costs 3 years costs 5 years 5 years

Cost

Balance at April 1, 2023 (CHF) 365 758 220 000 797 000 4712 320 6 095 079
Additions (CHF) 0
Derecognition (CHF) -320 948 -220 000 -797 000 -4 427 320 -5 765 268
Reclassifications (CHF) 0
Balance at March 31, 2024 (CHF) 44 810 0 0 285 000 329 811
Balance at April 1, 2024 (EUR) 45 310 0 0 288173 333483
Additions (EUR) 15543 0 0 0 15543
Derecognition (EUR) 0 0 0 0 0
Reclassifications (EUR) 0 0 0 0 0
Balance at March 31, 2025 (EUR) 60 853 0 0 288 173 349 026
Accumulated depreciation

Balance at April 1, 2023 (CHF) -323 935 -220 000 -797 000 -4 528 653 -5 869 588
Scheduled depreciations (CHF) 0
Impairments (CHF) -1 -1
Derecognition (CHF) 311985 220 000 797 000 4 357 654 5 686 639
Reclassifications (CHF) 0
Balance at March 31, 2024 (CHF) -11 949 0 0 -171 000 -182 950
Balance at April 1, 2024 (EUR) -12 083 0 0 -172 904 -184 986
Scheduled depreciations (EUR) 0 0 0 0 0
Impairments (EUR) 0 0 0 0 0
Derecognition (EUR) -12 516 0 0 -57 635 -70 150
Reclassifications (EUR) 0 0 0 0 0
Balance at March 31, 2025 (EUR) -24 599 0 0 -230 538 -255 137
Net carrying amount at March 31, 2024 (CHF) 32861 0 0 113 999 146 861
Net carrying amount at March 31, 2025 (EUR) 36 254 0 0 57 635 93 889
Net carrying amount at March 31, 2025 (CHF) 34 889 0 0 55 463 90 352




APAG Elektronik AG, Pfaffikon SZ

Explanationary notes to the financial statements 2024/2025

Notes

March 31, 2025 prior year
EUR CHF CHF
0.96233
2.8 Trade payables
- Third parties 481 043 462 922 541 338
- Directly or indirectly related parties 8763411 8 433 293 10 341 375
Total 9 244 454 8 896 216 10 882 713
2.9 Short-term financial liabilities
- Third parties 0 0 180 630
- Directly or indirectly related parties 1053 220 1013 545 1 000 000
Total 1053 220 1013 545 1180 630
2.10 Other current liabilities
- Third parties 15 280 14 705 73 231
- Shareholders 0 0 1001 644
Total 15 280 14 705 1074 875
2.11 Deferred income and accrued expenses
- Accrued expenses 419 524 403 721 452 798
- Deferred income 0 0 0
Total 419 524 403 721 452 798
2.12 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (long-term)
- Bank loans 8 832 690 8 499 963 8 500 000
- Directly or indirectly related parties 0 0 69 453
Total 8 832 690 8 499 963 8 569 453
2.13 Other long-term liabilities 0
- other long term liabilities 11 173 10 752 11 050
Total 11173 10 752 11 050
2.14 Personnel expenses
Employee benefit expenses 854 556 822 365 913 811
Social security expenses 123 475 118 824 147 064
Other personnel expenses 4127 3972 8 540
Third-party services 653 657 629 034 445 283
Total 1635 816 1574 195 1514 698
3 Net releases of replacement and further hidden reserves 0 0 62 000
4 Liabilities vis-a-vis pension schemes 36 460 35 087 32 365



APAG Elektronik AG, Pfaffikon SZ

Explanationary notes to the financial statements 2024/2025

Notes

March 31, 2025 prior year
EUR CHF CHF
0.96233
5 Other details and information required by law
5.1 Business name, legal form and registered domicile
APAG Elektronik AG is a stock company incorporated under
Swiss law with registered domicile in Pféffikon SZ.
5.2 Declaration of the average number of full-time equivalents
The number of full-time equivalents in the reporting period below 50 below 50
5.3  Direct or significant indirect investments
APAG Elektronik Corp. Ontario (CAN) *
Share capital CAD 10 000
Capital stock held directly 100.00% 100.00%
Proportion of voting rights 100.00% 100.00%
5.4 Residual amount of the liabilities from leasing
transactions and other leasing obligations
- leasing contracts (cars) 57 328 55 168 0
Long term rental agreements:
- rental agreements in Pfaffikon-SZ and Wallisellen 247 549 238 224 268 709
- subrental agreement Pfaffikon-SZ -34 666 -33 360 -23 640
- rental agreement Wollishofen 75 987 73125 95 625
Total rental agreements in Pfaffikon-Sz, Wollishofen and Wallisellen 288 871 277 989 340 694
5.5 Total amount of assets pledged as collateral for
own liabilities
Total book values of pledged assets - trade receivable third party 11 346 854 10 919 418 9579 074
5.6  Extraordinary, non-recurring or prior-period expenses and income
- correction outgoing credit note 0 0
- release of accruals 0 0
- creation/release inventory provisions 37 879 36 452 62 000
- Net revenue / cost on disposal of fixed assets 34 015 32734 4 376
- Net book value of disposal long term assets -25 380 -24 424 0
- extraordinary expenses (redundancy payment) 0 0 -171 030
- other extraordinary income / income-prior period 18 127 17 444 12 036
- other operating expenses 0 0 -7 264
- extraordinary gain of waiver of loans APAG Holding AG 8 525 202 8 204 058 11 000 863
- extraordinary loss of waiver of loan APAG Elektrionik Corp. -7 200 223 -6 928 991 -11 000 863
- Bad debts written off -1 053 619 -1 013 929 0
Total extraordinary expense 336 000 323 343 -99 882
5.7 Open derivatives forward contracts at end of March 2025 Strike Barrier
Option of exercice: Sell (total amount)
EUR 9500000 CzK 228000 000 24.000 26.9000
EUR 10 000 000 USD 10 350 000 1.035 1.2500
No unrealised FX loss is expected as per 31 March 2025
5.9 Valuation of loans
According to the outline of the group we expect that the subsidiary of
Canada financially recover within the next future based on business plan
and budgets we set up as a group.
5.8 Significant events after the balance sheet date

From the balance sheet date until the approval of the financial statements
by the Board of Directors, no major events occurred which could
adversely affect the validity of the annual financial statements or which
would have to be disclosed.



APAG Elektronik AG, Pfaffikon SZ Profit appropriation

Proposed appropriation of available earnings

March 31, 2025 prior year

EUR CHF

Available earnings brought forward 985 578 779 807
Net profit for the year / (Net loss for the year) -1 357 938 194 920
Transfer from free reserves 0 0
Transfer from legal reserves from retained earnings 0 0
Transfer from unrestricted reserves 0 0
Available earnings / Accumulated losses -372 360 974 727

The Board of Directors proposes to the General Meeting of Sharholders the following
appropriation of available earnings:

Payment of a dividend 0 0
Allocation to legal reserves 0 0
Allocation to unrestricted reserves 0 0

To be carried forward -372 360 974 727
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1. BASIC INFORMATION ABOUT COMPANY

Company: APAG Elektronik s.r.o.

Registered office: U Panasonicu 396, Pardubice - Staré Civice,
Postal Code 530 06

Identification number: 498 13 005

Tax identification number: CZ49813005

Date and way of establishment: = The Company was incorporated on September 14,
1993, by its registration into the Companies Register kept by the Regional Court of Hradec
Kralové, Section C, Insert 4954.

Legal form: Limited Liability Company

Object of business: - Production, installation and repair of electronic machinery and
apparatus, electronic and telecommunication equipment

- Manufacturing, trade and services not specified in Annexes 1 to 3 of the Trade Licensing
Act

Statutory body: Anand Vardhan Kanoria, Director
Shareholders: APAG Holding AG
Registered capital: CZK 8,100,000.00
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2. REPORT ON THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS AND ASET STATUS FOR
THE PERIOD FROM 4/2024 to 3/2025

APAG Elektronik s.r.o. (the “ACZ”) having its registered office in Pardubice, the Czech
Repubilic, is a subsidiary company of APAG Holding AG having its registered office at 8808
Pfaffikon, Zentrum Staldenbach 13, the Swiss Confederation, registration number: CHE-
112.364.596.

The major owner of the parent company APAG Holding AG is KANORIA CHEMICALS &
INDUSTRIES LTD.

Further, parts of APAG Holding AG are APAG Elektronik AG (the “ACH”), APAG Elektronik LLC
(the “AUS™) and CoSyst Control Systems GmbH (the “ADE”) and APAG Elektronik Corp (the
HACA’!).

The principal activity of the Company is mounting of printed circuit boards by SMT and THT
technologies and production of electronic systems primarily for the automotive industry.

Customers

In the financial year 2024, we supplied our products as part of projects we had prepared in
previous years, especially for the automotive sector.

Last year the biggest customer was Lear company, which manufactures automotive equipment
for passenger comfort.

The second most important customer in the European market was Witte, which produces
modules for lighting the exterior of car doors (OVT modules) for BMW and VW.

A long-term important customer remains the Hella company, which assembles electronic
modules produced by our company mainly intended into the products for AUDI.

In 2024, we began production of a new product, the end customer of which is Tesla.

As part of the changes that took place in 2023, we also started to supply products intended
for the North American market through our subsidiary in° Canada. The most important
customers in 2024 were Ziehl-Abegg, Forvia and Bosch.

Suppliers

The purchase of the material was performed by the Supply Chain Management (Logistics).
The Strategic Purchasing Unit (Procurement) ensured the development of quotes for inquiries
from buyers and the purchase of sample material. Strategic purchasing focused on savings in
the purchase of materials and on negotiating new prices for the period of 2024.
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Technologies

The manufacturing procedure generally consists of the following production operations:
— Mounting of SMD components to PCB by retrofit automatic machines
— Soldering SMD components (Reflow)

— AOlI inspection, or X-Ray

— Dividing of panels to individual PCB

— Manual mounting of THT components

— Soldering of THT components

— AOI inspection

—ICT and EoL inspection

— Special operations (painting, potting, etc.)

— Assembly

— Packaging

The basic production operation is the mounting of SMD components to PCB, which is done in
retrofit automated lines.

Soldering of components is mainly carried out with lead-free solder (lead-free process).

Soldering of SMD components is performed on Reflow soldering machines, which are part of
SMT production lines. The soldering devices are made by REHM and ITW firms and enable
the soldering of components under a protective nitrogen atmosphere.

Soldering of THT components is carried out on equipment made by SEHO and ERSA firms
and on two selective soldering machines produced by ERSA company.

Division multiple DPS panels is performed on equipment with the principle of “guillotine” or on
the milling device.

ICT Inspection is performed on ICT testers from Aeroflex, Teradyne and Reinhardt EoL checks
are performed on single-purpose devices related to a specific project.

For some projects, special manufacturing operations are used such as potting by silicone or
polyurethan material, Buigel soldering or painting on automatic powder coating line (Conformal
Coating). A special technology also represents the “Action Pin” device for automatically
inserted pins into the DPS, which allows eliminating the soldering process for connectors.

An integral part of the production process is a laser device which is able to burn DMX codes
to PCB. The DMX codes make it possible to ensure traceability of products, which is a
necessary condition for supply to the automotive industry.
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Investment

In the period under review, an automatic assembly line for the new Tesla project was put into
operation, which was designed and for the most part built in-house thanks to our Automation
department, which is located in our premises in Pilsen.

Due to the growing demand for new automated lines, this department was strengthened and
relocated to new, larger premises. The ability to develop and assemble production lines
internally brings greater flexibility and the ability to tailor the process to customer
requirements.

Expected development of activities for the next accounting period

The accounting unit plans to continue with its business activities within the following
accounting period. The availability of electronic components is much better than in previous
times.

Risks caused by the disruption of supply chains due to the war in Ukraine have not appeared.

The company has managed to win new projects from both existing customers (HUF) and
especially new customers (Tesla, ITW, Minebea, Sensirion). These new projects are the largest
in the company's history and we expect further revenue growth in connection with them. To
ensure sufficient capacity, we plan new investments in technology and also the expansion of
production and storage facilities.

Research and Development

The development team, which is engaged in the development and production of simple
functional testers (EoL). ACZ does not deal with product research and development, these
development works are in the competence of ACH, ADE and ACA.

Quality management system

The quality system is developed in accordance with the requirements of the IATF 16949:2016,
ISO 9001:2015 and ISO 13485:2016 standards.

In the monitored period, the recertification audits of the integrated quality system IATF 16949/
ISO 9001 and the environment ISO 14001, which were carried out by the company NQA, were
successfully completed.

We also managed to complete the implementation of the quality system ISO 45001 Safety and
security at work.
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The quality system is regularly audited according to the audit program by internal and external
audits.

Production processes are audited by both internal audits and very frequent audits by
customers.

Impact on the environment

ACZ pays constant attention to limiting the impact of production on the environment. All waste
generated during the production, both ordinary and dangerous, are forwarded to an external
company, which holds a license for waste disposal.

An expression of our responsible approach to the environment is the certificate according to
ISO 14001:2015.

Occupational safety

Occupational safety and fire protection are ensured with the assistance of an external company
in order to meet legal requirements and to create a suitable working environment throughout
the company.

In connection with the implementation of ISO 45001, the OHS committee was established and
meets regularly on a monthly basis.

Human Resources

To the day 31.3.2025, the company had a total of 496 employees, of which 421 employees
were regular and 75 were supplied by employment agencies. The total average recalculated
number of employees was 472, of which 48 were agency workers. More detailed information
on ACZ employees can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

Other information
The Company has no foreign branch.

Between the date of the Financial Statements and the date of the Annual Report, no
significant events occurred.

The company has not acquired any of its own shares or equity interests.
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Summary

The financial year 2024 was only slightly affected by problems with the availability of electronic
components, especially chips.

Customer requirements were high and stable during the reporting period, with an increase in
the last quarter, mainly in connection with the launch of the Tesla project into series production.
In terms of production capacity, we were able to cover customers' requirements.

The difficult situation on the labor market, which appeared in previous periods, continued for
most of the reporting period, and therefore it was possible to secure enough workers for
production needs only with the help of employment agencies.

The goals set by the budget were continuously monitored on a monthly basis.

Despite all the difficulties, we managed to achieve the highest sales in the company's history
and a positive operating result.
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3. ECONOMIC PART

The Economic part of the Annual Report consists of the following documents:

Financial Statements as of March 31, 2025 and Annex to the Financial Statements.

Report on relations between interconnected entities for the period from 4/2024 to
3/2025.

Pardubice, on May 14, 2025

APAG Elektronik s.r.o.

)

Ing. Ladislav Hrdy /

/

On behalf of Power of Attorney
VP MFG Operations
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Independent auditor’s report on the
financial statements of the company
APAG Elektronik s.r.o.
as of 31st March 2025

PKF APOGEOQ Audit, s.r.o.
Rohanské nabrezi 671/15
Recepce B

CZ186 00 Praha 8

Number of pages: 5

PKF APOGEO Audit, s.r.o.
Rohan Business Center, Recepce B IC: 27197310 Tel.: +420 267 997700
Rohanské nabfe#i 671/15,186 00 Praha8 DIC: CZ27197310 www.pkfapogeo.cz 1
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

on the financial statements of the company APAG Elektronik s.r.o.

Business address: U Panasonicu 396, Staré Civice, 530 06 Pardubice

Company registration number: 498 13 005 '

Main activity: production, trade and services not listed in Annexes 1 to 3 of the Trade Licensing Act
production, production, installation and repair of electrical machinery and apparatus, electronic and
telecommunication equipment

This Independent Auditor's Report on the financial statements has been prepared for associate of
the company APAG Elektronik s.r.o.

The auditor’s opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of APAG Elektronik s.r.o. (hereinafter the
"Company"), compiled based on Czech accounting regulations, which compromise the balance sheet
as of 31 March 2025, and the profit and loss account, Statement of changes in equity and Statement
of cash flow for the period from 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Information about company is disclosed in note 1 to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of APAG
Elektronik s.r.o. as of 31 March 2025, revenues and expenses and the results of its profit and its cash
flows for the period from 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 in accordance with accounting regulations
applicable in the Czech Republic.

Basic for qualified opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Act on Auditors and standards Czech Chamber of
Auditors for the audit, which the International Standards on Auditing (ISA), possibly supplemented
and modified the related application guidance. Our responsibility defined in these regulations is
described in detail in Section auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the financial statements. In
accordance with the Auditors Act and the Code of Ethics adopted by the Chamber of Auditors of the
Czech Republic, we are independent of the Company and we met other ethical obligations resulting
from these regulations. We believe that the audit evidence we have gathered, provide sufficient
reasonable basis for our opinion.

PKF APOGEO Audit, s.r.o.
Rohan Business Center, Recepce B 1C: 27197310 Tel.: +420 267997700
Rohanské nabiezi 671/15, 186 00 Praha 8 DIE: CZ27197310 - www.pkfapogeo.cz 2
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Other information included in the annual report

Other information is in accordance with § 2) Auditor Act information in the annual report outside the
financial statements and our audit report. The Board of Directors is responsible for all other
information.

Our opinion on the financial statements will not apply to other information. Nevertheless, it is part
of our duties related to auditing the accounts, reading the other information and assess whether the
other information is not significant (material} of non-compliance with the financial statements or our
understanding of the entity obtained during the audit of financial statements or whether other such
information not appear to be significant (material) is incorrect. Also consider whether other
information was all significant (material) respects prepared in accordance with relevant legislation.
This means assessing whether the information meets the other requirements of legislation for the
formalities and the process of developing other information in the context of the significance
(materiality), i.e. whether any infringement of those requirements would be likely to affect the
judgment made on the basis of other information.

Based on the procedures performed, to the extent that we can no longer judge, we note that
e other information describing matters that are also presented in the financial statements, in all
material respects in accordance with the financial statements and
» other information has been prepared in accordance with the law.

Furthermore, we are required to state whether, on the basis of knowledge and awareness of the
company to which we have arrived in auditing, and other information is free of material factual
misstatements. Under those procedures, we have received no other information material factual
misstatements were found.

Responsibility of the Statutory Body for the Financial Statements

The Statutory Body is responsible for preparing the financial statements give a true and fair view in
accordance with accounting regulations and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material, whether due
to fraud or error.

The preparation of financial statements, the Statutory Body of the Company is required to assess
whether the Company to continue as a going concern and, if applicable, the disclosure in the financial
statements matters relating to the going concern and the use of the going concern assumption in
preparing the financial statements, except in cases the Statutory Body planned dissolution of the
Company or its closure, respectively when no realistic alternative but to do so.

PKF APOGEO Audit, s.r.0.
Rohan Business Center, Recepce B 1G: 27197310 Tel.: +420 267 997 700
Rohanské nabieZi 671/15,186 00 Praha8 DIC: CZ27197310 www.pkfapogeo.cz 3
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The person responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process in the Company is Statutory
Body.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the audit of financial statements

Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements as a whole do not have
a significant (material), whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s report contains our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of certainty, however, does not guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the above provisions in all cases in the financial statements reveal any
existing significant (material), if it can be reasonably assumed that, individually or in the aggregate,
could influence the economic decisions of users of financial statements on the basis of income.

In conducting an audit in accordance with the above provisions is our duty to apply throughout the
audit professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism. Furthermore, it is our duty:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis to express an opinion. The risk that
we discover significant (material) misstatement due to error, as part of a fraud may be
collusion, falsification, deliberate omissions, misrepresentations or circumvention internal
controls.

¢ To be familiar with internal control relevant to the audit of the Company to the extent that
we can design audit procedures appropriate to the given circumstances, we cannot express
an opinion on the effectiveness of its internal control system.

o Assess the appropriateness of accounting policies used and reasonableness of accounting
estimates and information which, in this context, the Statutory Body stated in the financial
statements.

o Assess the appropriateness of using the going concern assumption in preparing the financial
statements, the Statutory Body and whether, having regard to the evidence obtained, there
is a significant (material) the uncertainty arising from events or conditions that may partly
significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going. If we conclude that
such a significant (material) uncertainty exists, it is our duty to point out in our report on the
information provided in this respect in the financial statements, and if this information is not
sufficient to express a modified opinion. Our conclusions regarding the Company’s ability to
continue as a going based on the evidence that we have obtained to date of our report.
However, future events or conditions may lead to the fact that the Company loses its ability
to continue as a going.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of financial statements, including
attachments, and whether the financial statements reflect the underlying transactions and
events in a way that leads to a fair presentation.

PKF APOGEO Audit, s.r.o.
Rohan Business Center, Recepce B IC: 27197310 Tel.: +420 267997 700
Rohanské nabfe?i 671/15,186 00 Praha8 DIC: CZ27197310 www.pkfapogeo.cz 4
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Our duty is to inform the Statutory Body, among other things, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and on significant findings, which are in the course they did, including the identified significant
deficiencies in internal control.

/
Prague, 14 May 2025.. el
# e
‘/. -
// —
L o
udit firm: ompany auditor:

PKF APOGEO Audit, s.r.o.
Rohanské nabfezi 671/15
Recepce B NEx,
CZ 186 00 Praha 8 %, e

Ing. Jaromir Chaloupka
Certification number of the auditor 2239

PKF APOGEO Audit, s.r.0.
Rohan Business Center, Recepce B 1C: 27197310 Tel.: +420 267997700
Rohanské ndbfeZ 671/15,186 00 Praha 8 DIC: CZ27197310 www.pkfapogeo.cz 5



i Commercial name or other name
g;':rr:srslent BALANCE SHEET of an accounting unit
regulation No. APAG Elektronik s.r.o.
el e el R I s et SR s
as of 31.3.2025 Registered office :
(in thousand of Czech Crowns ) U Panasonicu 396
530 06 - Pardubice - Staré Civice
Ident. Number | Ceska republika
49813005 Matter of activity
manufacture, installation, repair of electrical
machinery and apparatus, electronic and
telecommunications equipment
1 Current accounting period P’e""’”:eig?““t'“g
ABBETS " Gross | Adjustment | Net Net
E i e R e
"TOTAL ASSETS | 1 | 1461467 463314 998153 1007 948
A. Receivables from subscrlpuons B 2 0 0 0 - 0;
B. Fixedassets 3 | 714880 426210 288670 291573
B. I Incorporation expenses i . 4 | 40110  -33538 BETA[ 6782
B. I.1 Intanglble results of development 5 " - 0 - 0 0 B 0
2 \Valuablerights 6 40110  -33538 6571 3515
21 Software . 7 40110, 33538 6571 3515
22  |Other valuable rights 8 - 0. ' 0 0 0
3 Goodwil 9 o 0 o 0
4 Otherintangible fixed assets 10 o 0 0 0|
. T | o o o
5.1  |Advance payments for intangible fixed assets 12 0 0 0 0
52 Intanglble fixed assets under constructlon 13 0 0 0 3267
B. I Tangible fixed assets 0 14 | 674771 392672 282099 284791
B. II.1 Land and constructions 15 | 200191  -50402 149788 151655
11 |Land i 16 21483 0 21483 21483
12 |Constructions : 17 178708  -50402 128305 130 172
2 [ Tangible movable items and their 18 | 459164  -341410 117754 132339
3 Diferenceinvaluation to acqunred assets 19 | - 0 0 0l 0
4 Other tangible fixed assets (.21 when 23) 20 o 0 o 0
41 | Perennial crops 21 0 0 ol 0|
42 Adult animals and their ir groups [ 22 0. O‘m - OI 0|
4.3 \Other tang|ble fixed assets o ‘ 23 0 0 _bi D'
5 ;’;Zgagsr::&ts for tangible assets and tangible - ‘ 24 15 416 -860 14 557 798
5.1 Advance payments for tangible fixed assets 25 - 0 0 0] 0|
5.2 Tangible fixed assets under construction 26 15 4126_‘__ ~ -860 14 557 798
B. il Long-term financial assets e 27 0[ 0 D! 0|
B. 1. 1 Pammpatlons controlled or controlllng person 28 0 0l 0 0
5 :;c;ﬁ]r;s;]z\;\d credit — controlled or controlling person, substantial| 29 _0‘ - 0 0 : 0
3 Pammpatlons substantial influence 30 0 0! 0 0
4 Loans and credit — substantlal influence | 3 0 . OI 0. 70
[ aﬁéilong-term securities and shares B 32 0 o 0 . 0'
6 'Loans and credit — other ' 33 0' : 0| 0 0
7 |Other long-term financial assets (1.35+36) | 34 0 O 0 0
7.1 | Other long-term financial assets 3 0o O: 0 : 0
7.2  Advance payments for long-term financial assets | 36 0 0l 0 o 0
c Current assets | 37 | 746587  -37104| 709483 716 375
& 1, Inventory | 38 | 377453 35973 341481 427 552‘
lc. 1. 1 Materials - 39 281480  -31042 250438 362 569
2 Work-in-progress and semi-products _7{0 ] } 77688 -1 728j 75 960 _ 44182
3 Finished products and merchandlse 41 18 285 -3 202 15082 20 802;
31 |Finished products 42 18285 -3202 15 082 20 802
3.2 [Merchandise o 43 Ol of o 0
4 Young and other animals and their groups 44 0| 0 o -
5 Advance payments for inventory 45 0 0 0 o




C. Il |Receivables | 46 | 362871 4131]  361740| 288 625,
Coli A Long-term receivables a1 581 o] 581 | 230
| Trade receivables | 48 0 0!7 0 0

12 Receivables — controlled or c':ontrolling person ) ! 49 0 0 | 0 0

13 | Receivables — substantial influence | 50 0| 0| 0 0

1.4  Deferred tax receivable | 51 0 0 0 0

15 Other receivables ) N 52 581 0 581 230

1.5.1 'Receivables from péﬁnérs | 53 \ 0 B 0 Oi 0

1.5.2 |Long-term deposits given : 54 581 0 581 230

153 |Estimated receivables 55 0| 0 0 0

. 154 Other receivables - 56 0 0 0 0
C.Il.2 Shortterm receivables e | 57 | 360807| 1131 359766 287 232
2.1 |Trade receivables - 58 1928 -481 1447 1076/

22 Receivables — controlled or controlling person 59 335340 0 335340 264610

23 Receivables — substantial influence ) . 60 0 0 0 )

24 Other receivables - o 6 23629 -850 22979 21545

241 Receivables from partners B 1 62 7 0 0 0l 0

242 Social secI:ti'ty and health insurance 63 0‘ 0 o 0

2.4.3 Due from state - tax receivables -64-_- 32 0| 32 32'

244 Short-term deposits given | 65 = 23581 -650 22931 21497

2.4.5 Estimated receivables 66 15 0 15| 0

246 Other receivables 67 1 0 1 16
C.on3 LAccruedraisgts 68 1393 .0 1393 - - 1183
3.1 Deferred expenses 69 | 1393| 0 1393 1163

32  Complex deferred costs 70 | 0 7 0 0o 0

| 3.3 Deferred income 71 0 0 o 0 0‘,
C. . Short-term financial assets 72 0l 0 0 0
C. .1 |Participations - controlled or controlling person 73 0 0 0 0
2 Other short-term financial assets ' 74 0l 0 0 0l

C. V. Finances 75 6262 0 6 262 198,
C. IV. 1 Petty cash 76 | 161 0 161 103
2 |Funds in the accounts B 77 | 6101 0 6101 95

|D. Accrued assets R 78 ! ) 0l 0 0 0
[D. 1 Deferred expenses 79 | 0 0 0 0
| 2 'Complex deferred costs | 80 0 0 0 . 0|
3 Deferred income 81 0 0 o 0



Current accounting

| Previous accounting|

LIABILITIES period i period
5 6
TOTAL LIABILITIES e . R 998 153 1007 948
‘A, Equity | 83 209738 220 084
[A. Reglstered capital | 84 8100 p 8100
| 1 Registered capital .85 8 100 8100/
2 Own shares (-) B 86 0 ‘ 0
| 3 Changes in reglstered capital 87 0 ‘ 0
Al Agio and capital funds ] . 88 69 996 { 69 996
Al Agio - . 89 ] 0 0
2 Capltal funds - ) \ 90 | 69 996 69 996 |
2.1 |Other capital funds - 91 69 996 . 6999
2.2  |Differences from revaluation of assets and liabilities (+/-) 92 -0 ; 0
23 |Differences from Revaluation on transformation business corp 93 | 0 | 0[
24 Adjus!ments from transformatlon business corporations . 94 0 | 0
2.5 Differences in pricing at transformations business corporatlons 95 0 - 0
AL Funds created from net proflt : | 96 A 0 0|
Al Other reserve funds |97 0 0
‘ 2 Statutory and other funds | o8 0 B 0
ALV Profit / loss of previous years (+-) | 99 | 141 988 113 508
PAL IV Retained earnings or loss of past years | 100 | 141 296 112 817|
2 Other retained earmngslaccumulated loss (+/-) 101 - 691 9
A V. Profit / loss of current period (+/-)[1.1-(3+7+15+18+23+24+6: 102 i -10 346 28 480
A. VI Decnsnons on advances for the payment of profit sharing (-} \ 104 0 = 0
B.+C Foreign sources s [ _105 788 416 % 787 864
B. Reserves Fais W | 106 | 7165 = 7398
B. 1 Reserves for pension and similar payables 107 0 f 0
2 Income tax reserve - 108 B 0 | 0
3 Reserves under special statutory regulations 109 0 § 0
4 Other reserves - 10 | 7165 7398
|C. Payables Eee 2 R 781 251 _ 780 466
(C. | Long-term payables 5 = | 112 131144 | 140 699
[C. I 1 Bonds issued 113 0 0|
| 4 ] Convertible bonds 114 ) 0 B 0
1.2 |Other bonds 115 ) 0 0
2 Payables to credit institutions - . 116 _7 50 652 | 53918/
3 Long-term advances received _ L1M7 0 | 0|
4 Trade payables ) - | 118 | 0 g 0|
5 Long-term notes payable - i 119 0 | 0
6 Payables — controlled or controlling person 120 79888 80 976
7 Payables — substantial influence 121 | 0 ) 0
8 Deferred tax liability ' 122 604 5805
9 Other paybles 123 0 0
9.1  |Payables from partners _ | 124 | ) B 0 B 0
9.2 |Estimated payables | 125 ) 0 0
9.3  |Other payables | 126 0 0




c. I Short-term payables [A27 ] 650026 i 639 762
c. 1 Bonds issued B B | 128 0 B 0
1.1 |Convertible bonds ) | 129 - 0 N 0

1.2 |Other bonds ) | 130 0 ‘ 0

2 |Payables to credit institutions 131 i 224816 231567

3 Short-term advances received ) | 132 o | 0]

4 |Trade payables - ) | 133 | 338 294 ] 284 069

5 Short-term notes payable ) 134 - 0 | _ 0

6 Payables — controlled or controlling person 135 39 ‘ 53132

7 Payables — substantial influence ) | 136 | ] 0 ] 0

8 Other paybles 137 | 86 877 | 70 994 |

8.1 Payables from partners ' ] - 138 0 0|

8.2  [Short-term financial assistance i L 139 0 7 0|

83 [Payroll - 140 | 13711 . 12240

8.4 Piayﬁés'social security and health insurance ) | 141 | - 7952 B il 1_7'3;

8.5 |State - tax liabilities and subsidies ' 142 60219 B 43701

86 |Estimated payables ) - 143 - 4994 ] 7877

8.7 _|Other payables ' i [ 144 - 0 ] 0

[C. . Accrued liabilities | 145 | oL 4 5
|C. M1 Accrued expenses | 146 81 7 | 5
? 2 Deferred revenues ) | 147 | ) 0 | 0
D. Accrued liabilities 7 | 148 ] 0 = e
D. 1 Accrued expenses 149 _ 0 | 0
2 |Deferred revenues 150 0 0
|Prepared on: S'g“a‘“fe i sl'a?tutory PR S EEURENGUE, A 101 8n 'Person responsible for financial statements: |
| ‘accounting unit. ‘ B -~ - |

114.05.2025
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Consistent

Profit and Loss Account

Commercial name or other name

with of an accounting unit
Egulaiion as of 31.3.2025 APAG Elektronik s.r.0.
o. S
500/2002 (in thousand of Czech Crowns ) Registered office :
e full version U Panasonicu 396
Pfe S 2 530 06 - Pardubice - Staré Civice
_Ident. Number T Ceska republika
49813005 Matter of activity
IERSTE e 17 FeSRae manufacture, installation, repair of electrical
machinery and apparatus, electronic and
telecommunications equipment
Balance in the accounting period 2
~ curent | previous
1 2
I Revenues from own products and services S Aol 1903328 1631794
. Revenues from merchandise 2 531 : "~ 1686
A. Production consumption 3 1 545 153 _1 283 535
1 Cost of sold goods 4 ' 591 1753
2. Consumplion of material and energy 5 1462 987 1207 773
3. [Services 6 81574 74009
B. Change in inventory of the company’s own production (+/-) 7 | 14290 -17 965
[ Capitalisation (-) 8 | 7715 -2 050
D. Personnel expenses 9 | 302 573 250 636
1. [Wages and salaries 10 | 211 224 174710
2 Social security expenses and health insurance and other costs (1.12+13) | 91349 75925
2. 1 [Social security expenses and health insurance ETH 73450 60 527
2. 2 |Other costs 13 17 900 15 399
E. Value adjustments to operating activities 14 66 783 49 187
% Value adjustments of tangible and intangibleproperty (18l 15 = 52503 47694
1. 1 [Value adjustments of tangible and intangible property - permanent 16 52 503 47 694
1. 2 [Value adjustments of intangible and tangible assets - temporary 17 0 0
2 Value adjustments of inventories 18 13 743 1638
3. Value adjustments to receivables 19 537 -145
. Other operating revenues 20 29720 . 54472
l. 1 |Revenues from disposals of fixed assets 21 291 0
2 [Revenues from disposals of material 22 24033 51314
3 |Other operating revenues 23 5 395‘ 3158
F. Other operating expenses 24 30653 53 315
1. Net book value of sold fixed assets 25 - 7 N o ﬂ
2. [Sold Material 26 22761 47 924
3. Taxes and fees 27 - 391 223
4, Reserves relating to operaling activities and complex deferred expenses 28 - 234 560
5i Other operating expenses 29 7727 4567
* |Operating profit (+-)(I.1 +2-3-7-8-9- 14 + 20 - 24) 30 10 484 71293
IV.  |Income from financial assets - shares 3 ol % g
V. 1 |Income from investments - controlled or controlling person 32 0 0
2 |Other income from investments E - 0 0
G. Cost of sales shares 34 0 0
V. Revenues from other financial assets J 35 TRk 0 0
V. 1 |Revenuss from other financial assets - controlled or controlling person 3_6 1 a B _E- S _0
2 |Other income from other financial assets 37 0 0
H. Costs related to other long-term investments 38 - 0 0
VI. |Interest and similar income 39 | 0 |
V1. 1 |Interest and similar income - controlled or cantrolling person 40 i T - 0 0
2 |Other interest income and similar income 41 0 0
I Value adjustments and provisions in the financial sector 42 ) ) _B” i N i l]
J. Interest expense and similar charges 43 19139 23205
1. Interest expense and similar charges - controlled or controlling person 44 0 ) 0
2. Other interest expense and similar charges 45 19139 23 205
VIIl.  |Other financial revenues 46 | 41881 32167
K. Other financial expenses :ﬁ_’ 3] - 42 886 51 3572
" Financial results (+/-)(1.31-34+35-38+39-42-43+46-47) 48 -20 144 -42 391
*|Profit before tax (+/-) 49 -9 660 28 903
I Income tax 50 686 423
1. Income tax payable 51 5887 548
2 Deferred income tax (+/-) 52 5201 125
= |Profit after tax (+/-) 53 -10 346/ 28 480
M. Transfer of profit to pariners (+/-) 54 |
***  |Profit for the period (+/-) 55 -10 346 28 480
* |Net sales for the reporting period = L+IL+lI|.+IV.4+V.+VI.+VII. X = 56 1903 920 |

Prepared  Signature of statutory authority or entrepreneur, who is an accounting VPers;Jr! fos

7y i

14.05.2025

ponsible for fipancial statements:

f
/



Consistent
with
regulation
No.
500/2002
Sh.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

as of 31.3.2025
( in thousand of Czech Crowns )

o3

Commercial name or other name
of an accounting unit
APAG Elektronik s.r.o.

Eégistered office :
U Panasonlcu 396
'530 06 - Pard blce Slare éIVICE_"

49813005

Matter of activity

manufacture, installation, repair of

electrical machinery and apparatus,
electronic and telecommunications
equipment

| Balance in lhe accountlng period ‘

i current previous
P  Balance of cash on hand and financial equivalents as at the beginning of reporting period | 198 134
|Cash flows from running activities o sl :
Z ' Accountlng profit/loss from runmng actnntles before taxation 9660 | 53 28 903
A. 1  |Adjustments by non-cash operations [ 71124 71 501
A. 1 1 Depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of adjusanents to acquired assets 52503 47 694
A. 1 2 Change in balance of adjustments, reserves a 234 | 560
A. 1 3 |Profit from sales of fixed assets - - -284 41
A 1 4 Revenue from shares in profit - o _ -
A 4B ./I:\]fs:neusr:ted for interest expense, exclusive of interest capitalization and accounted for credit 19139 | . 23 205
A. 1 6 Possible adjustments by other non-cash operahons
A 'Net cash flow from runmng activities before taxatlon changes in workmg capital | 61464 | 100 404
A 2 Change in non-cash items of working capltal 1 24 16677 o -69 085
A 2 1 Change |n balance of receivables from runmng activities, temporary assets accounts 73115 32825
A. 2 2 |Changein balance of short-term payables from running activities, temporary liability accounts 11 203 -13 396
A. 2 3 Change in balance of inventory 86 072 ~ -88514]
A. 2 4 Change in balance of current liquid assets not included in cash or equivalents 0 0
A 'Net cash flow from running activities before taxation 85 624 31318
A 3 Paid interest with the exception of mteresl included in fixed assets pricing -19139 -23 205
A 4 Interests received 7 o | 0
A 5 Income tax for running activities and additional tax assessments for pre\nous periods R 0o 0
A 6 Income and expense on unusual and/or extraordmary items, including income tax N 0 | 0
Bl 2 \Net cas flow from runnmg activities 66 485 8113
|Cash flows from investing activities
B = ‘Expense on fixed assets acquisition o -49 600 60 811
B. 2 Income from fixed assets sales - 284 -41
B. 3 'Loans to related pames - B 0 0
B, ** Net cash flow from investing activities . : , -49 316 -60 852
Cash flows from financing activities : =
C: 1 Change in  balance of Tong term or short-term payables - -11 104 52 803
C. 2 "In“l_p;ét_ of changes in equity on cash on rgnd and financial equwalents - 0 )
G 2 1|Increase in cash on hand as a result of increased registered cap|tal share premium etc. 0 0
G 2 2 | Payment of share in equity to partners : - 0 | 0
C. 2 3|Other contributions of cash by partners and shareholders o 0 )
C. 2 4| Loss coverage by partners "8 ) 0 0
C. 2 5Directdebitfund payments a | 0
C. 2 6|Paid shares in profll including taxes pald ) - | 0
G, ¥ |Net cash flow from f'_nanc;ng actlwtfes TR ‘ : -11 104 | 52 803
F-_Net mcrease/decrease in cash on hand Jid ‘ 6065 ' =% ___65
R |Balance of cash on hand and financial equivalent_s as at the end of répm:ﬁng period \ 6 262 198
E;:epared S;%git:tzi;f;ti:mow auliarity orenimegrenaur, whe isian Person responsible for financial statements:
14.05.2025 /Z} Fa o /) A T
) Y




Consistent with regulation No. 500/2002 Sb. as amended No. 472/2003 Sb.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AS AT 31.3.2024
full version

Commercial name or other nameof an accounting unit

APAG Elektronik s.r.o.

U Panasonicu 396
Pardubice - Staré Civice

( in thousand of Czech Crowns ) 530 06
Ident. Number
[ 49813005 |
k 31. 3. 2024
Opening Increase Decrease Closing balance
balance
A. [Share capital 8 100 8 100
B. |Unregistered share capital 0
C. |Subtotal A +/- B 8 100 8100
D. [Own shares held 0
* |Subtotal A +/- B +/- D 8 100 8 100
E. |Share premium 0
F. | Statutory reserve fund 0
G. | Statutory and other reserves 0
H. |Other capital contributions 69 996 69 996
|. |Gains and losses from revaluation 0
J. |Retained earnings 131 583 28 310 159 892
K. |Accumulated losses -47 076 -47 076
L. |Other Retained earnings - correction of previous years 691 691
M. | Profit / loss for the current period XX 28 480 28 480
N. |Rounding 1 1
* |Total 163 293 56 790 0 220 084
k 31. 3. 2025
Opening Increase Decrease Closing balance
balance
A. |Share capital 8 100 8 100
B. [Unregistered share capital 0
C.|Subtotal A +/- B 8 100 8 100
D. |Own shares held 0
* |Subtotal A +/- B +/- D 8 100 8 100
E. [Share premium 0
F. [Statutory reserve fund 0
G. | Statutory and other reserves 0
H. [Other capital contributions 69 996 69 996
|. [Gains and losses from revaluation 0
J. |Retained earnings 159 892 28 480 188 372
K. |Accumulated losses -47 076 -47 076
L. |Other Retained earnings - correction of previous years 691 691
M. | Profit / loss for the current period XX -10 346 -10 346
N. |Rounding 1 1
* |Total 191 603 18 135 0 209 738
Prepared on: Signature of statutory authority or | Person responsible for financial
entrepreneur, who is an accounting statements:
unit:

14.05.2025
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APAG Elektronik s.r.o.
Annex to the Financial Statements as of 31 March 2025

The annex is prepared in accordance with Decree No. 500/2002 Coll., as amended, which sets out the
content of the financial statements for entrepreneurs. The data in the annex are based on the
accounting documents of the accounting entity (accounting vouchers, accounting books, and other
accounting documents) and other materials available to the accounting entity. Monetary data is
presented in thousands of CZK unless otherwise stated.

The annex is prepared for the accounting period starting on 1 April 2024 and ending on 31 March
2025.
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Annex to the Financial Statements as of 31 March 2025

Contents of the Annex:
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10.
11.
12.
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9.
10.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

DESCRIPTION OF THE ACCOUNTING ENTITY

ENTRIES IN THE COMMERCIAL REGISTER

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE OF THE ACCOUNTING ENTITY AND ITS MAJIOR CHANGES DURING THE PAST ACCOUNTING PERIOD
OWNERSHIP OR CONTRACTUAL PARTICIPATION OF THE ACCOUNTING UNIT IN OTHER COMPANIES

OWNERSHIP OR CONTRACTUAL PARTICIPATION OF BOARD MEMBERS IN OTHER COMPANIES

ACCOUNTING METHODS, GENERAL ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, AND VALUATION METHODS

TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
1.1. Valuation method
1.2 Valuation of internally generated tangible anf intangible fixed asstes

13. Determination of adjustments to assets values (depreciation and provisions)

1.4. Depreciation system for low-value long-term assets

1.5. Method for determining replacement acquisition cost

1.6. Change in valuation, depreciation and accounting procedures

1.7 Determination of fair valu efor assets and liabilities valued at fair value
INVENTORY

VALUATION OF SECURITIES AND SHARES
RECEIVABLES AND LIABILITIES
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
EquiTy
RECEIVED LOANS AND BORROWINGS
REVENUE AND EXPENSE ACCOUNTING
FOREIGN CURRENCY CONVERSION
INCOME TAX
PENSION INSURANCE
LEASING

SUPPLEMENTARY DATA TO THE BALANCE SHEET AND INCOME STATEMENT

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ON TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
1.3, Main group of tangible fixed assets
1.2, Intangible fixed assets
1.3. Tangible fixed assets acquired through operating lease
T4, Total assets not reported in the balance sheet
1.5, List of movable property encumbered by pledge rights
1.6. Overview of assets with significantly different market and book valuation
LONG-TERM EKVITY SECURITIES AND EKVITY INVESTMENTS
INVENTORY
2,1, Inventory shortages and surpluses
PROVISIONS
RECEIVABLES AND LIABILITES
5.1 Overdue receivables
5.2 Overdue liabilities
53 Liabilities not monitored in accounting and not stated in the balance sheet
ADVANCES
Equity
7%l Registered capital
7.2 Capital funds

7.3 Profit distribution or loss coverage
7.4 Other profit or loss
PROVISIONS

8.1 Other significant potential losses not covered by provisions
LONG-TERM BANK LOAN
SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS
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Annex to the Financial Statements as of 31 March 2025

11, INFORMATION ON INTERCOMPANY TRANSACTIONS WITHIN THE GROUP
11.1  Information on receivables and liabilities related to pledges and collateral rights
12. LIABILITIES RELATED TO SOCIAL SECURITY AND HEALTH INSURANCE
13 STATE — TAX LIABILITIES AND SUBSIDIES
14. REVENUES
15, EXPENSES
16. EXPENSES INCURRED DURING THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD ON RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
17. EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY, PERSONNEL COSTS
17.1 AVERAGE NUMBER OF EMPLQOYEES DURING THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD
18. REMUNERATION TO STATUTORY BODIES AND PROVIDED CASH OR OTHER BENEFITS
19. INCOME TAX
19.1  Additional assessments of income tax for previous accounting periods
20. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE



APAG Elektronik s.r.o.
Annex to the Financial Statements as of 31 March 2025

I. GENERAL INFORMATION

1. Description of the accounting entity

Company name: APAG Elektronik s.r.o.

Registered office: U Panasonicu 396, 530 06 Pardubice - Staré Civice

Legal form: Limited Liability Company

Company 1D (1€): 498 13 005

Scope of business: Manufacture, installation, repair of electrical machines and devices,

electronic and telecommunication equipment

Manufacture, trade, and services not listed in Appendices 1 to 3 of the Trade

Licensing Act

Date of incorporation: 14 September 1993

Persons holding more than 20% of the entity's share capital:

Name of natural person, Current accounting period
name of legal entity (in thousands CZK)
Residence
Ownership i.e. %
interest
APAG Holding AG Zentrum Staldenbach 13, 8808 Pfaffikon SZ 8.100 100

Previous accounting
period
(in thousands CZK)
Owners i.e.%
hip

interest

8.100 100

This financial statement is unconsolidated. The consolidated financial statement is prepared by APAG
Holding AG, 8808 Pfiffikon SZ, Zentrum Staldenbach 13, Swiss Confederation, Registration Number:

CHE-112.364.596.

2. Entries in the commercial register

No entries were made in the Commercial Register during the reporting period.




APAG Elektronik s.r.o.
Annex to the Financial Statements as of 31 March 2025

3. Organizational structure of the accounting entity and its major changes during the
past accounting period

The company does not have any permanent branches. There were no changes in the organizational
structure.

CEO

SEKRETARIAT PERSONALISTIKA

SYSTEMOVY
MANAGEMENT ——— LINANCE

AUTOMATIZACE LOGITISTIKA

T 1
Zpracpvan\ Nakup materialu Sklad
zakazek
VYROBA
L
T T 1
Gsazova‘ni SMT Osaal ;];rHT
EESEEEER TECHNIKA
|
T T 1
| Udribﬂ bUdDV
JAKOST
| T 1
Vyrobni Projektova Zakaznicka Systém
kvalita kvalita kvalita kvality
PRUMYSLOVY
INZENYRING
PROJEKTOVY
MANAGEMENT

Members of statutory and supervisory bodies as of the balance sheet date:

The statutory body is Mr. Anand Vardhan Kanoria — Managing Director.



APAG Elektronik s.r.o.
Annex to the Financial Statements as of 31 March 2025

4, Ownership or contractual participation of the accounting unit in other companies

Equity participation over 20%: The company has no equity interests in other companies.

5. Ownership or contractual participation of board members in other companies
Equity participation over 20%: Members of the statutory body do not have any equity interest in other

companies.

Il. Accounting Methods, General Accounting Principles, and Valuation
Methods

The submitted financial statements were prepared in accordance with Act No. 563/1991 Coll., on
Accounting, and Decree No. 500/2002 Coll., which define accounting procedures and the content of
financial statements for entrepreneurs.

Amounts in the financial statements and annex are rounded to thousands of Czech crowns (TCZK),

unless stated otherwise.

1. Tangible and intangible fixed assets

1.1. Valuation method
Purchased tangible and intangible fixed assets are valued at acquisition cost, which includes the

purchase price and all costs related to the acquisition. Interest on foreign capital, if related to the
acquisition period, is not capitalized.

1.2 Valuation of internally generated tangible anf intangible fixed asstes

Self-produced fixed assets are valued at actual costs incurred for their acquisition.

1.3. Determination of adjustments to assets values (depreciation and provisions)

Tangible and intangible assets are depreciated according to the depreciation plan. Accounting and tax

depreciation differ.
Accounting depreciaton — method used:
e Accelerated — for assets acquired before 2007

e Straight-line — for assets acquired after 1 January 2008

Tax depreciation — method used:



APAG Elektronik s.r.o.
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® Accelerated — for assets acquired before 2007

e Straight-line — for assets acquired since 2008

Technical improvements to fixed assets exceeding TCZK 80 in the accounting period are capitalized.

If the residual value of fixed assets exceeds their estimated useful value, a provision is created for such
assets, which is charged to expenses.

The company creates a provision, for example, due to temporary non-use, damage, etc.
The company also creates a provision for assets that have not yet been put into use but whose

estimated useful value is lower than their acquisition cost.

1.4. Depreciation system for low-value long-term assets

Low-value tangible fixed assets up to TCZK 80 are charged directly to company expenses under account
501 — Consumption of Material.

1.5. Method for determining replacement acquisition cost

The company values assets at acquisition cost. During the current and previous accounting periods,

replacement acquisition cost was not used for valuation.

1.6. Change in valuation, depreciation and accounting procedures

No changes in valuation, depreciation, or accounting procedures occurred in the accounting unit

during the reporting period.

1.7. Determination of fair valu efor assets and liabilities valued at fair value

The company did not apply fair value valuation during the current or previous accounting periods.

2 Inventory

Purchased inventory is valued at acquisition cost using the standard cost method with deviations.

Purchased materials are valued at acquisition cost using the standard cost method with deviations.
The acquisition cost includes only the purchase price. Ancillary acquisition costs are recorded in a
separate analytical account and allocated to expenses monthly as a percentage of the average material
consumption in inventory value.

For accounting for increases and decreases in inventory, the company uses Method A (accounting for
each individual movement).
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Purchased goods are valued at acquisition cost using the standard cost method with deviations. The
acquisition cost includes only the purchase price. All costs related to the acquisition (especially customs
duties, transport, packaging) are shown in separate accounts directly in the income statement.

Self-manufactured work-in-progress, semi-finished products, and finished goods are valued using
predetermined production costs. These include direct material and labor costs, machine costs,
material and production overhead. The company uses Method A for accounting inventory changes.

Provisions for inventory are created in cases where the accounting valuation temporarily exceeds the

current market value of the relevant inventory.

3. Valuation of securities and shares

The company did not own any securities or equity interests during the current or previous accounting
periods.

4, Receivables and liabilities

Receivables and liabilities are valued at nominal value at inception. Provisions are created against
expenses for hard-to-collect receivables. A provision of 50% is created for receivables overdue by more

than 6 months, and a 100% provision for receivables overdue by more than 1 year.

Receivables and liabilities towards related parties are reported as follows:
e Receivables from and liabilities to the shareholder and sister companies are reported by the
company under the item "Receivables/Liabilities — Controlling and Managing Entity. “

5. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank accounts are valued at nominal value.

6. Equity

The company's registered capital represents the amount registered in the Commercial Register. Other

capital funds were created from shareholders’ contributions in excess of their capital shares.

7. Received loans and borrowings

Short-term and long-term loans are recorded at their nominal value. The portion of long-term loans
payable within one year from the balance sheet date is considered short-term.

8. Revenue and expense accounting

Revenues and expenses are accrued, i.e., they are recorded in the accounting period to which they
materially and temporally belong.
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In accordance with the prudence principle, the company records the creation of reserves and
provisions against expenses to cover risks, losses, and impairments known as of the date of preparation
of the financial statements.

9. Foreign Currency conversion

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are converted to Czech currency using a fixed
exchange rate, set hased on the Czech National Bank (“CNB”) rate valid for each month.

All monetary assets and liabilities, receivables, and payables denominated in foreign currencies were
converted at the CNB rate as of the balance sheet date. All realized and unrealized foreign exchange

gains and losses are recognized in the income statement.

10. Income tax

Income tax in the income statement for the given period consists of the current tax and changes in

deferred tax.

The expected current income tax is calculated using the applicable tax rate on the profit adjusted for
permanent and temporary differences.

Deferred tax reflects all temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in
the balance sheet and its tax base. The corporate income tax rate applicable to the accounting period
in which deferred tax is expected to be realized is used. A deferred tax asset is recognized if it is
probable that it will be utilized for tax purposes in future accounting periods.

11. Pension insurance

As of 1 May 2023, the company provides employees with pension insurance contributions in the
amount of CZK 500 per month.

To finance state pension insurance, the company pays regular statutory contributions to the state
budget.

12. Leasing

The acquisition cost of assets obtained through financial or operating lease is not capitalized. Lease
payments are charged to expenses evenly over the lease term. If a purchase option is exercised at the
end of the lease, the asset is capitalized at the buyout price or, in the case of a free transfer, at the

replacement acquisition cost.
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lll. Supplementary data to the balance sheet and income statement

1. Supplementary information on tangible and intangible assets
1.1. Main group of tangible fixed assets

All assets acquired in 2024/2025 were obtained through purchase or created internally.

Acquisition Cost Accumulated depreciation Net book value
Group od assets Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous
period period period period period period
Lands 21.483 21.483 0 0 21.483 21.483
Buildings 178.708 174.747 50.402 44.576 128.306 130.172
SMV and sets of movables 459.164 440.660 341.410 308.321 117.754 132.339
Other TFA 0 1.335 0 1.335 0 0
Unfinished TFA 15.416 1.657 0 0 15.416 1.657
Prepayments to TFA 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 674.771 639.883 391.812 354.232 282.959 285.651

Among the largest additions to tangible fixed assets acquired during the reporting period are the X-
ray machine (CZ00703, TCZK 8,374), the potting machine for the OVT 17 line (CZ00707, TCZK 5,067)
and the construction of a new parking lot (CZ00347, TCZK 2,967).

1.2. Intangible fixed assets
Group od assets Acquisition Cost Accumulated depreciation Net book value

Current Previous Current Current Previous Current
period period period period period period

Software 40.110 34,313 33.538 30.799 6.572 3.515

Valuabe Rights 0 0 0 0 0 0

Result of scientific activity 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other IA 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unfinished IA 0 3.267 0 0 0 3.267

Total 40.110 37.580 33.538 30.799 6.572 6.782

Among the largest additions to intangible fixed assets acquired during the reporting period is the
upgrade of projects related to the existing ERP IFS system (TCZK 3,845).

10
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1.3. Tangible fixed assets acquired through operating lease
\ Of which T
: Lease term  Total lease Paid by i Due within ~ Due over 1
Lease item paid in
(months) amount 31/3/2025 1year year
2024/2025

Skoda Fabia kombi 60 456 409 84 47 0
Skoda Octavia kombi 48 647 647 92 0 0
Skoda Octavia Exclusive kombi 48 798 265 199 199 334
Skoda Octavia Selection Combi 48 626 52 52 156 418
Skoda Octavia Selection DSG 48 814 118 118 203 493
Combi

Total X 3.341 1.491 545 605 1.245

Total operating lease liabilities as of 31/03/2025: TCZK 1,850 (as of 31/03/2024: TCZK 922).

1.4. Total assets not reported in the balance sheet

The company does not record any assets not included in the balance sheet in either the current or

previous period. All low-value tangible assets have been expensed directly.

1.5. List of movable property encumbered by pledge rights

According to the pledge agreement with Ceska spofitelna, a.s. (amounts in CZK '000):

Pledged Asset

Soldering equipment SEHO

Nitrogen concentration meter
AOI| automatic optical tester
Varnishing machine / Nordson
ICT / KPL tester

Optical tester

Conveyors

FUJI NXT 11l Fitting Machine
EKT Tester - FPC

Drying cabinet

Furnace with conveyors
Tester for M820

Adapter for tester

Kardex - vertical system

ICT Tester / Toptest and Cevor
Conveyors to the Topaz line
Screen printing

2D CODE READER

Contamination measurement tester

Value in

current

period
595
243
113
499
2.671
3.268
1.446
3.292
15.326
1.465
267
2184
1.205
427
1.831
1.535
185
1.101
88

Value in
previous
period
595

243
113
499
2.671
3.268
1.446
3.292
15.326
1.465
267
2184
1.205
427
1.831
1.535
185
1.101
88

11:
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2D CODE READER

Pinning machine / KPL

Soldering robot FRC 500

Ersa selective wave

Loaders / KPL

EKT tester project M821

EKT tester for M864

ICT tester

Scanner for pinching machine

Programming station M835

Automated production line P945

Hybrid repair station

ICT Tester — M835

Tester ICT 10 — Cobham

ICT Reinhardt

Tester EOL

Spectrometer Feasa S1

Sensor for height measurement of soldering
Sensor for height measurement of soldering
Mechanical stress meter — Strain gauge PCD 400A
SMD line — Modules for mounting machine
SMD line — Modules for mounting machine
Climatic test chamber

Potting machine Scheugenpflug — line HUF — NO. 2
Compressor Orlik BX 11/500

Tester AOI SAKI

Pinning machine

ICT

Buffer

Reflow Pec

Conveyor

Conveyor - perfecting

Conveyor - loading

Conveyor TRM 03

ConveyorTRM 01

Tester SPI KY8030-2

Programming station M899

Reader Insignium 1000 with conveyor
Conveyor DSP — unloader with buffer
Conveyor DSP - unloader

Soldering robot K2 machine

Mounting machine NXT Il 4M

Mounting machine M6&Il NXT I

Mounting machine M611 NXT 11

Selective wave ERSA II.

Mounting machine NXT Ill Modules and bases
Tester SPI KY 8030

Tester AOI 3D

88
7.303
2.479
3.898

692
905
583
2.403
8.065
168
2972
845
318
1.930
1.478
2.288
121
319
319

87
3.830
2.536

907
3.799
151
1.303
5.407
3.323
204
664
83
115
166

61

64
1.633

140
57
978
487
2.798
7.218
1.969
1.935
5.303
6.373
1.945
4.098

88
7.303
2.479
3.898

692
905
583
2.403
8.065
168
2972
845
318
1.930
1.478
2.288
121
319
319

87
3.830
2.536

907
3.799
151
1.303
5.407
3.323
- 204
663
83
115
166

61

64
1.633

140
57
978
487
2.798
7.218
1.969
1:935
5.303
6.373
1.945
4.098

12
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Conveyor —reversal L-R 90
Conveyor — reversal 180

Loader LSB 03

Conveyor BLO 01 — loader — labelling line
Conveyor BUL 01 - unloader
Mounting machine M6ll NXT 1lI
Reflox Pec

Screen printing Serio 4000
Conveyor AES 03 D - Line loader
Tester AOI

Drying cabinet M930

Tester ICT TERADYNE

Labeling machine

3D AOI tester CZ00631

3D AOI tester CZ00632

Solder Paste printer CZ00633
Solder Paste printer CZ00634
Solder Paste printer CZ00635
3D solder paste inspection CZ00636
Flip Station CZ00642

Bare Board Line Loader CZ00643
Shuttle Conveyor CZ00645
Shuttle Conveyor CZ00646
Shuttle Conveyor CZ00650
Reading Conveyor CZ00651
Cooling Buffer CZ00653

Shuttle Conveyor CZ00654
Conveyor Model YSC 1X00 CZ00652
Buffer Model AMR CZ00656
Magazine loader C200658
Reading Conveyor CZ00660

Pick and place machine CZ00629
Pick and place machine CZ00630
Reading Conveyor CZ00648
Magazine unloader CZ00641
Reading Conveyor CZ00647
Reading Conveyor CZ00655
Inspection Conveyor CZ00649
Verification Conveyor CZ00657
Cleaning Conveyor CZ00644
Cleaning Conveyor CZ00659
Total

217
93
124
223
241
4.768
629
1.841
491
288
244
3.664
2.185
3.322
3.322
2.519
2.519
2.519
2.053
289
403
305
305
405
271
988
287
233
461
514
215
5.559
5.551
200
457
221
221
312
352
508
508
182.406

217
93
124
223
241
4.768
629
1.841
491
288
244
3.664
2.185
3.322
3.322
2.519
2.519
2.519
2.053
289
403
305
305
405
271
988
287
233

© 461
514
215
5.559
5.551
200
457
221
221
312
352
508
508
182.406
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Annex to the Financial Statements as of 31 March 2025

According to a pledge agreement with Ceskoslovenskd obchodni banka, a.s. (amounts in thousands

CZK)
Value of pledge in Value of pledge in the
Subject of pledge L ; ;
the current period previous period
Building Civice 168.277 168.277
READER | insignum 1000 530 mm 403 403
READER Il insignum 1000 530 mm 403 403
READER Ill insignum 1000 530 mm 403 403
Bin FPS 30B singl line FIFO 616 616
Bin PS 30 Lifo 360 360
Conveyor TRM 01 single L1000 301 301
Conveyor ASM03D 638 638
Laser with input and output bin 2.873 2.873
Cutting machine CNC DIVISIO 2000 2.018 2.018
Varnishing machine / Nordson Il 2.440 2.440
Furnace for painting line 1.618 1.618
FUJI NXT 11l Fitting Machine 7.543 7.543
FUJI NXT IlI Fitting Machine 7.706 7.706
Total 195.599 195.599
1.6. Overview of assets with significantly different market and book valuation

The company does not record any assets of this kind in either the current or the previous accounting

period.

2. Long-term ekvity securities and ekvity investments

As of 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the company holds no equity investments or other long-term

equity securities.

3. Inventory

Raw material
Work in progress
Semi-products
Finished products

Merchendise

Total

Current Period

Gross E Adjustment
281.480 31.042
75.892 | 1.728 |
1.796 0
18.285 | 3.202
0 0
377.453 35.972

Previous Period

Gross | Adjustment | Gross

250.438 381312 18.743
74.164 | 43.493 | 1.599 |
1.796 2.287 0|
15.082 | 22.689 | 1.888 |
0 0 0|
341.481 449.782 22.229

Adjustment

362.569
41.895
2.287
20.802
0
427.552

3.1. Inventory shortages and surpluses

Inventory shortages and surpluses identified during physical inventory counts were reported in the

income statement. Any internal reassignments of inventory items were duly reflected.
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Annex to the Financial Statements as of 31 March 2025

4. Provisions

Type of
Provision

Material
inventory
Work-in-
progress
inventory
Finished
products
inventory
Receivables
Tangible

fixed assets

Opening balances Created
Current Previous Current Previous
period period period period

18.743 17.929 31.042 18.743

1.599 950 1.728 1.599
1.888 1.712 3.202 1.888
594 739 1131 594
860 860 0 0

Released Closing balance
Current Previous Current Previous
period period period period

18.743 17.929 31.042 | 18743
1.599 950 1.728 1.599
1.888 1.712 3.202 1.888
594 739 1.131 594

0 0 860 860

5. Receivables and liabilites

5.1 Overdue receivables

Number of days

To maturity
1-30
31.—90

91 -180

181 and more
Total

Current period

Trade receivables Other receivables

358 282.556
0 22.097
453 29.391
43 1.500
794 0
1.648 335.544

Previous period
Trade receivables Trade receivables

904 264.563

119 0

4 0

7 0

458 47

1492 264.610

5.2 Overdue liabilities

To maturity
1-30
31-90
91-180

181 and more
Total

Numbers of days

Current period

Trade liabilities Other liabilities

225.787 86.877
76.004 0
26.606 0

7.791 0
2.106 0
333,294 86,877

Previous period
Trade liabilities Trade liabilities
153.532 70.994
48.649 0
65.683 0
15.651 0
554 0
284.069 70.994

5.3 Liabilities not monitored in accounting and not stated in the balance sheet

The company did not have any liabilities not reflected in the balance sheet as of 31 March 2025 or 31

March 2024.
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6. Advances
As of 31 March 2025, the company reports long-term advances provided in the amount of TCZK 581
(as of 31 March 2024: TCZK 581). These consist of security deposits related to lease agreements.

As of 31 March 2025, the company reports short-term advances provided in the amount of TCZK
23,584 (as of 31 March 2024: TCZK 22,931). These mainly represent advances for energy and materials.

7. Equity
7.1 Registered capital
Reporting period
Partner Ownership Share Unpaid Contribution Due date
APAG Holding AG 100 % 0 0

Changes in equity are shown in a separate statement.

7.2 Capital funds

As of 31 March 2025, capital funds amount to TCZK 69,996 and consist of a contribution outside the
registered capital.
No changes occurred in capital funds during the current or previous accounting period.

7.3 Profit distribution or loss coverage

The company reported a profit of CZK 28,480 thousand for the previous period. The entire profit was
transferred to retained earnings from previous years (see also the statement of changes in equity).
For the accounting period 2024/2025, the company recorded a loss of CZK -10,346 thousand.

The settlement of the profit or loss will be decided by APAG Holding AG, the sole shareholder of the
company.

7.4 Other profit or loss

Other profit or loss as of 31 March 2025 amounts to TCZK 691.
No changes in other comprehensive income occurred during the current or previous accounting
period.

8. Provisions

The company only creates a provision for unused vacation. The amount of the provision for unused
vacation as of 31 March 2025 is CZK 7,165 thousand (as of 31 March 2024: CZK 7,398 thousand).

8.1 Other significant potential losses not covered by provisions

As of 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the company does not record any potential losses that would
not be covered by provisions.

9. Long-term bank loan

As of 31 March 2025, the company reports the following long-term bank loans:
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Total in TCZK Interest of which of which
ratein % maturing in 1 maturing in1
The outstanding year TCZK to 5 years
part in TCZK TCZK
Ceskoslovenskd obchodni TCZK 33.475 3M TCZK TCZK
banka, a.s. (TEUR 1.300) EURIBOR 3.416 10.249
Loan for the acquisition of TCZK 13.665 +1,85% (TEUR 137) (TEUR 410)
machinery (TEUR 547)
Ceskoslovenské obchodni TCZK 15.947 3mM TCZK 2.082 TCZKO
Banka, a.s. (TEUR 584) EURIBOR (TEUR 83) (TEUR 0)
Loan for the acquisition of TCZK 2.082 +1,80 %
a building (TEUR 83)
Ceskoslovenska obchodni TCZK 19.016 3M TCZK 4.313 TCZK 1.078
banka, a.s. (TEUR 748) EURIBOR (TEUR 173) (TEUR 43)
Loan for the acquisition of TCZK 5.391 +1,80 %
machinery (TEUR 216)
Leasing Ceska TCZK 37.182 4,99 % TCZK 6.963 TCZK 23.094
spofitelna,a.s. 1 (TEUR 1.469) (TEUR 279) (TEUR 925)
Loan for the acquisition of TCZK 30.057
machinery (TEUR 1204)
CSOB LEASING, a.s. 1 TCZK 2.495 5,61% TCZK 479 TCZK 1.519
(TEUR 101) (TEUR 19) (TEUR 61)
Loan for the acquisition of TCZK 1.998
machinery (TEUR80)
CSOB LEASING, a.s. 2 TCZK 12.494 4,54% TCZK TCZK 9.282
(TEUR 495) 4,86% 2.281 (TEUR 372)
Loan for the acquisition of TCZK 11.563 (TEUR 91)
machinery (TEUR 463)
Leasing Ceska spofitelna, TCZK 6.790 4.29% TCZK TCZK 5.428
a.s. 2 (TEUR 270) 1.303 (TEUR 218)
Loan for the acquisition of TCZK 6.731 (TEUR 52)
machinery (270 TEUR )

Bank loans payable within one year as of 31 March 2025 amount to TCZK 20,836 and are reported
under Balance Sheet item C. . 2 — Liabilities to credit institutions (31 March 2024: TCZK 21,677).
Bank loans with maturity over one year as of 31 March 2025 amount to TCZK 50,652 and are reported
under Balance Sheet item C. |. 2 — Liabilities to credit institutions (31 March 2024: TCZK 53,916).
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Loans reported in the financial statements as of 31 March 2024:

Total in TCZK Interest of which of which
rate in % maturinginl  maturingin1
The outstanding year TCZK to 5 years
part in TCZK TCZK

Ceskoslovenské obchodni TCZK 20.292 3M TCZK 3.856 TCZK O
banka, a.s. (TEUR 800) EURIBOR (TEUR 152) (TEUR 0)
Loan for the acquisition of TCZK 3.856 +1,75 %
machinery (TEUR 152)
Ceskoslovenska obchodni TCZK 33.475 1M TCZK 3.463 TCZK
Banka, a.s. (TEUR 1.300) EURIBOR (TEUR 137) 13.851
Loan for the acquisition of TCZK 17.314 +1,85 % (TEUR 547)
a building (TEUR 684)
Ceskoslovenska obchodni TCZK 15.947 M TCZK 2.813 TCZK 2.110
banka, a.s. (TEUR 584) EURIBOR (TEUR 111) (TEUR 83)
Loan for the acquisition of TCZK 4.923 +1,80 %
a building (TEUR 194)
Ceskoslovenska obchodni TCZK 19.016 3M TCZK 4.371 TCZK 5.464
banka, a.s. (TEUR 748) EURIBOR (TEUR 173) (TEUR 216)
Loan for the acquisition of TCZK 9.835 +1,80 %
machinery (TEUR 389)
Leasing Ceska spofitelna TCZK 37.182 4,99 % TCZK 6.715 TCZK 30.467
a5 (TEUR 1.469) (TEUR 265)  (TEUR 1.204)
Loan for the acquisition of TCZK 37.182
machinery (TEUR 1.469)
CSOB LEASING, a.s. TCZK 2.495 5,61% TCZK 459 TCZK 2.026
Loan for the acquisition of (TEUR 101) (TEUR 18) (TEUR 80)
machinery TCZK 2.485

(TEUR 98)

10. Short-term bank loans

The company has overdraft loans repayable on demand by the company or the banks, with a notice

period of 3 months. As of 31 March 2025, the overdraft balance with Ceskoslovenska obchodni banka,
a.s. amounts to TCZK 149,761 (as of 31 March 2024: TCZK 149,510). The loan is secured by the value
of the company’s inventory and selected receivables of the parent company from end customers.

As of 31 March 2025, the overdraft balance with Ceska spofitelna, a.s. amounts to TCZK 54,220 (as of

31 March 2024: TCZK 60,380).
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11. Information on intercompany transactions within the group

Revenues / Incomes

Costs / Expenses

Description of mutual

Company !
2024/2025 2023/2024 2024/2025 2023/2024 transactions
Sale of materials, finished
APAG Elektronik AG 1.536.311 1.584.315 3.745 1.445 products, goods and
services
Sale of goods, acquisition
Cosyst Control System GmbH 527 280 1.194 206  of material and investment
property
Kanoria Chemical & Industries Ltd. 0 0 0 32 Interest, fees, guarantees ‘
. Purchase of inventories and
APAG Elektronik Corp. 373.061 81.569 58.795 141.273 .
fixed assets
APAG Elektronik LLC 190 48 0 0 Sale of materials
APAG Holding AG 61 0 2.820 45.909 Loan, interest
Total 1.910.150 1.666.212 66.554 188.865
Description of grounds on
Receivables Liabilities which assets and liabilities
Company 2
are arising
2024/2025 2023/2024 2024/2025 2023/2024
 Sale of materials and
APAG Elektronik AG 218.423 264.547 0 0 finished products and
services
Cosyst Control System GmbH 519 39 91 Sale of services, material
Kanoria Chemical & Industries Ltd. 0 0 32  Interest, fees, guarantees
. Sales of material, goods,
APAG Elektronik Corp. 116.353 15 0 50.064 .
services
APAG Elektronik LLC 189 48 0 0 Sale of materials
APAG Holding AG 60 0 79.888 83.921 Loan, interest
Total 335.544 264.610 79.927 134.108
11.1  Information on receivables and liabilities related to pledges and collateral rights

As of 31 March 2025, the company has the following pledged receivables:
e Receivables pledged to Ceska spofitelna, a.s.: TCZK 94,512 (as of 31 March 2024: TCZK 77,121)
e Receivables pledged to Ceskoslovenska obchodni banka, a.s.: TCZK 109,580 (as of 31 March

2024: TCZK 104,637)
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12. Liahilities related to social security and health insurance

Liabilities from soc. sec. and health 7 : ¢ "
i Reporting Period Previous Period
Ins.

Total 7.952 7.175

13. State — tax liabilities and subsidies

Tax liabilities and subsidies Reporting Period Previous Period
Total 60.219 43.701

The company reports a liability to the state for value-added tax (VAT) in the amount of TCZK 52,884
for the 2024/2025 period (as of 31 March 2024: TCZK 41,862). For other direct taxes, the company
reports a liability of TCZK 7,336 for 2024/2025 (as of 31 March 2024: TCZK 1,839).

14. Revenues

Current period Previous period
Total Domestic Total Domestic Total Domestic
Revenues from sales of 591 0 591 1.686 0 1.686
goods
Rev. from sales of own 1.897.939 281 1.897.658 1.620.402 395 1.620.007
products
Rev. from sales of services 5.390 0 5.390 11.392 0 11.392
Change in inventories 0 0 0 0 0 0
Use of provisions 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other revenues 70.357 4.491 65.866 86.521 3.041 83.480
Total 1.974.277 4,772 1.969.505 1.720.000 3.436 1.716.564
15. Expenses
Current period Previous period

Material consumption 1.443.527 1.192.463

Personnel expenses 302573 250.636

Services ; 81.574 74.009

Depreciation of fixed assets 52.503 47.694

Energy 19.460 | 15.310

Other expenses 87.793 7 114.786
Total | 1.987.430 7 1.694.898

Services mainly include costs for external workers (TCZK 24,091), transportation costs (TCZK 15,438),
and maintenance costs (TCZK 9,660).

Expenses for financial audit fees recorded during the reporting period amount to TCZK 180.

16. Expenses incurred during the accounting period on research and development

During the current reporting or previous accounting period no expenses were incurred for research
and development.
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17. Employees of the company, personnel costs

2024/2025 2023/2024 (previous year)
APAG Elokironik sitio: Employees in Managing staff Employees in Managing staff out
total out of employees total of employees (0)
(0)
Gross wage (521) 211.224 0 174.710
Remuneration of statutory bodies 0 0 0
(523)
Social and health security (524) 73.450 0 60.527 0
Social costs (527) 13.670 0 10.138 0
Other social costs (528) 4.229 0 5.261 0
Total personnel costs 302.573 0 250.636 0

17.1 Average number of employees during the accounting period

The average number of employees during the reporting period was 472, of which 48 were agency
workers.

In the previous period, there were 424 employees, of which 59 were agency workers.

18. Remuneration to statutory bodies and provided cash or other benefits

During the current and previous reporting periods, no other monetary or non-monetary benefits
were provided to the statutory bodies.

19. Income tax

2024/20245 2023/2024
Income tax — payable 5.887 548
Income tax —deferred -5.201 -125
Income tax in total 686 423

Calculation of tax

The Ministry of the Environment, on 16 August 2013, decided on the investment project listed in
reference no. 30575/13/61300/892 for the granting of an investment incentive — expansion of
production of electronic systems for the automotive industry under §1a(1)(b) of the Investment
Incentives Act. APAG Elektronik s.r.o. meets the general conditions of §2(2)(a,d) and §2(3)(a,d) of Act
No. 72/2000 Coll., on the basis of which the Ministry of Finance granted approval for the incentive on
22 August 2013, Consequently, the Ministry of Industry and Trade issued an investment incentive
promise on 30 September 2013 under decision no. 163/2013. The incentive is provided in the form of
an income tax relief. Therefore, the final tax liability is calculated based on the income tax obligations
for fiscal years 2012/2013 and 2013/2014
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Tax calculation as follows:

2024/2025 2023/2024 2022/2023
Profit before taxation -9.660 28.903 28.119
Net adjustment to the tax base 38.427 21.847 12.406
Tax base 28.767 50.750 40.525
The expected tax liability for the accounting period
(21%;19%;19%) 6.041 7.700 7.700
The tax rebate 154 9.095 7153
The tax liability for the accounting period 5.887 548 547

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is calculated from all temporary differences using the tax rate valid for the period in which

the deferred tax is expected to be realized. It can be analyzed as follows:

K 31.3.2025 Tax rate K 31.3.2024 Tax rate
Fixed assets -47.145 21% -60.776 19%
Provisions 7.165 21% 7.398 19%
Provisions for inventory 35.973 21 % 22,229 19%
Provisions for receivables 1431 21 % 954 19 %
Total -2.876 -30.555
Deferred tax (liability) -604 -5.805
Change compared to previous year -5.201 126

19.1  Additional assessments of income tax for previous accounting periods

No additional assessments of income tax were imposed for previous accounting periods.

20. Significant events after the balance sheet date

No significant events occurred after the balance sheet date.

14.5.2025

Ing. Ladislav Hrdy //

On behalf of Power of Attorpey
VP MFG Operations

.
éf‘z%%’é}z,y /

Ing. Eva Krémarova

Accountant
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REPORT ON RELATIONS

APAG Elektronik s.r.o. having its registered office at Pardubice, U Panasonicu 396, PC. 530
06, ID 498 13 005, registered in the Companies Register kept by Regional Court in Hradec
Kralove, Section C, Insert 4954 (the ,,Company*®).

The Company is part of a business group (holding company) in which are the following
relations between the Company and controlling entities and between the Company and the

entities controlled by the same controlling persons (the , Affiliates®)

This Report on Relationships between the below mentioned persons has been elaborated in
accordance with provision Section 82 Act no. 90/2012 Coll., on commercial companies and
cooperatives (Business Corporations Act), as amended, for the accounting period from April
1, 2024 to March 31, 2025 (the “accounting period of 2024"). Within the accounting period,
the below mentioned contracts were concluded and the following legal acts and other factual
measures were adopted or performed between the Company and the below mentioned

persons.

A. BASIC SCHEME OF THE GROUP, RESPECTIVELY ENTITIES THE RELATIONS OF
WHICH ARE DESCRIBED HEREIN

Vardhan LTD 72%

———

Novares Venture Kanoria Chemicals & ;
Capital SAS (FR) Industries Limited e
20% (India) 55% [ ’

R | B

Corp. (CA)

APAG Elektronik

APAG Holding AG
(CH) 100%
|
. [ [ I —
| APAG Elektronik APAG Elektonik AG | Cosyst Control APAG Elektronik ]
s.r.0.(C2) (CH) 100% iSystems GmbH (DE) LLC (US) I
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B. CONTROLLING ENTITIES

APAG Holding AG (the ,APAG")

Relation to the Company: directly controlling person, total participation as at March 31.

2025 makes 100% of the ownership interest.

C. CONTROLLED ENTITY

APAG Elektronik s.r.o., the Company elaborating this Report on Relations.

D. THE ROLE OF THE PROCESSOR IN THE RELATIONSHIP STRUCTURE

Within the group, the Processor plays a key role in the industrialization, production and
distribution of electronic components and devices. lts activities are focused on providing
high-quality products and services that support the strategic goals of the entire group. It
actively cooperates with other members of the group, thereby contributing to achieving
synergistic effects and optimizing processes. By sharing know-how, technical knowledge
and experience, the company participates in innovation and increasing the efficiency of

the activities of the entire group.

E. CONTRACTS CONCLUDED IN THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD BETWEEN THE
CONTROLLED ENTITY AND CONTROLLING ENTITIES OR BETWEEN THE
CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Intercompany loan agreements concluded between APAG Holding AG and APAG
Elektronik s.r.o. dated 24.1.2023 and 26.5.2023.

Framework agreement for the supply of goods between APAG Elektronik AG a APAG
Elektronik s.r.o. dated 31.3.2023.

Framework agreement for the supply of goods between APAG Elektronik Corp. a APAG
Elektronik s.r.o. dated 1.4.2024.

F. PERFORMANCE BETWEEN THE CONTROLLED ENTITY AND CONTROLLING
ENTITY OR BETWEEN THE CONTROLLED ENTITIES CARRIED OUT IN THE
ACCOUNTING PERIOD AND CONCIDERATIONS ACCEPTED

Any and all fulfilments and considerations have been performed according to standard
procedure. From the legal acts carried out with the controlling entity or other entities

controlled by the controlling entity or on behalf of or at the instigation of these entities,
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the company APAG Elektronik s.r.o. suffered no known damage within the period under

review.

G. MEASURES ACCEPTED OR CARRIED OUT BY THE COMPANY IN THE INTEREST
OR AT THE INTEREST OF THE CONTROLLING ENTITY OR ENTITIES
CONTROLLED BY IT

F.1. Measures accepted or carried out by the Company in the interest of affiliates.

No measures in the interest of affiliates have been accepted or carried out within the

accounting period of 2024.
F.2. Measures accepted or carried out by the Company at the instigation of affiliates.

No measures at the instigation of affiliates have been accepted or carried out within the

accounting period of 2024.

H. ADVANTAGES AND DISADVANTAGES ARISING FROM RELATIONS BETWEEN
CONNECTED PERSONS

As for the advantages arising for the Processor from relations between Connected
Persons, Connected Persons have the opportunity to cooperate with each other in order
to achieve synergy and increase the efficiency of their activities. Connected Persons have

the opportunity to share information, know-how, technical and other experience.

At the same time, the Processor does not face any significant disadvantages that could
disrupt its independent functioning. The company retains its autonomy and identity.
Therefore, no disadvantages arising from relations between connected persons have been

recorded by the Processor as of the date of preparation of this report.

. OTHER LEGAL ACTS CARRIED OUT BY THE COMPANY IN THE INTEREST OF
THE CONTROLLING ENTITY OR ENTITIES CONTROLLED BY IT

No other legal acts in the interest of affiliates have been carried out by the Company

within the accounting period of 2024.
J. OVERVIEW OF KEY DEALINGS

The Processor has not made any deals in the interest of Controlling or Related Persons

relating to assets that exceed 10% of the Processor's equity.

K. FINAL DECLARATION OF THE COMPANY’S STATUTORY BODY
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We declare that we have stated within this Report on Relations between affiliates of APAG
Elektronik s.r.o. prepared in accordance with Section 82 Act no. 90/2021 Coll., on
commercial companies and cooperatives (Business Corporations Act),as amended, for
the accounting period starting on April 1, 2024 and ending on March 31, 2025, any and
all, in this period concluded or carried out and known to us as the date of signing this

report :

- Contracts between controlled entity and controlling entity or between controlled
entities,

- Performance and considerations provide to the controlling entity or to entities
controlled by it,

- Other legal acts carried out in the interest of such entities,

- Any and all measures accepted or carried out in the interest or at the instigation of

such entities.
Pardubice May 14, 2025

APAG Elektronik s.r.o.

/
=

Ing. Ladislav Hrdy

On behalf of Power of Attorney

VP MFG Operations
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Attestation report on the preparation by the tax adviser

In accordance with the terms of our engagement, we have prepared the following annual
financial statements - comprising the balance sheet, income statement - of the company

CoSyst Control Systems GmbH
Entwicklung/Herstellung elektr.Syst.

for the financial year from 01. April 2024 to 31. March 2025 in accordance with the provisions of
German commercial law and the supplementary provisions of the articles of association. The
basis for the preparation of these documents were the vouchers, accounting records and inven-
tory records presented to us, which we have not audited in accordance with the terms of our en-
gagement, and the information provided to us. The bookkeeping system and the preparation of
the inventory records and the annual financial statements in accordance with the provisions of
German commercial law and the supplementary provisions of the articles of association are the
responsibility of the management of the client.

We performed our engagement in accordance with the Verlautbarung der Bundessteuerberater-
kammer zu den Grundsétzen fiir die Erstellung von Jahresabschliissen (Pronouncement by the
German Federal Chamber of Tax Advisers on the Principles for the Preparation of Annual Fi-
nancial Statements). This engagement comprises the preparation of the balance sheet, income
statement on the basis of the bookkeeping system and the inventory records, as well as of the
accounting policies required to be applied.

Weihenzell, 12. May 2025

Steuerberater PartG mbB
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Income statement from 01/04/2024 to 31/03/2025

CoSyst Control Systems GmbH Entwicklung/Herstellung elektr.Syst., Niirnberg

1. Sales
2. Gross revenue

3. Other operating income

a) Income from disposal of items of noncurrent assets
and from write-ups of items of fixed assets

b) Income from reversal of provisions
¢) Miscellaneous other operating income

- of which income from currency translation EUR 4.23
(EUR 22.99)

4. Personnel expenses
a) Wages and salaries

b) Social security costs and expenses for old age
pensions and other benefits

5. Depreciation and amortization

a) Of noncurrent intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment

6. Other operating expenses
a) Occupancy costs
b} Insurance premiums, fees and contributions
c¢) Cost of third-party repairs and maintenance
d) Vehicle costs

e) Advertising and travel costs

f) Miscellaneous operating costs
) Losses from the disposal of noncurrent assets
) Miscellaneous other operating expenses

- of which currency translation losses EUR 0.00 (EUR
583.78)

= (o]

7. Interest and similar expenses

Carried forward

EUR

0.00
105.20
39,009.87

2,322,813.86

449,458.22

114,544.08
6,051.69
24,962.05
57,323.66
118,276.25
395,549.99
3.00
9,693.01

Financial Year
EUR

3,578,000.00

Page 6

Prior Year
EUR

3,100,000.00

3,578,000.00

39,115.07

2,772,272.08

87,052.59

726,403.73

0.00

© 31,386.67

3,100,000.00

331.47
199.15
39,974.17

40,504.79

2,152,857.04

395,676.36

2,548,533.40

89,757.30

113,589.22
3,892.35
36,106.19
54,639.45
91,485.48
145,784.02
4.00
757.41

446,268.12

5,644.96

50,311.01



Income statement from 01/04/2024 to 31/03/2025

CoSyst Control Systems GmbH Entwicklung/Herstellung elektr.Syst., Niirnberg

Brought forward

8. Taxes on income and earnings

10.

11.

12.

13.

- of which expenses from additions to and reversals of

deferred taxes EUR 0.00 (EUR 12,500.00)

Net income/net loss after tax

Other taxes

Net income for the financial year

Loss carried forward from the previous year

Net accumulated losses

EUR

Page 7

Financial Year Prior Year
EUR EUR
31,386.67 50,311.01
9,908.00 15,919.00
21,478.67 34,392.01
2,225.38 2,388.62
19,253.29 32,003.39
35,840.91 67,844.30
16,587.62

35,840.91




Accounts as at 31/03/2025

CoSyst Control Systems GmbH Entwickiung/Herstellung elektr.Syst., Niirnberg

ASSETS

Account

27

179

320
400
420

1471
1472

1520
1525
1530
1545
1590

1000
1210

980

Description

Purchased concessions, industrial property

rights and similar rights and values as well as

licenses to such rights and values
Computer software

Properties, rights equivalent to real property and

buildings, including buildings on third-party
land
Other buildings

Other equipment, operating and office
equipment

Passenger cars

Operating equipment

Office fittings

Receivables from affiliated companies
Trade rec. APAG Elektronik CZ
Trade rec. APAG Elektronik CA

Other assets

Revbls. health insurance funds AAG
Security deposits

Receivables from employees (payroll)
Accounts receivable from VAT adv. paym.
Items in transit

Cash on hand, central bank balances, bank
balances, and checks

Cash-in-hand

VR Bank Nirnberg # 333905

Prepaid expenses
Prepaid expenses

Financial Year

Page 8

Prior Year
EUR

49,083.00

30,766.00

96,213.00
26,505.00

37,291.00

160,009.00

3,602.52

9,450.00

13,052.52

7,813.00
1,280.00
1,000.00
8,237.27
_1,350.00
19,680.27

235.00

45,332.08

45,567.08

28,038.51

EUR EUR
30,707.00
22,977.00
62,772.00
21,351.00
34,829.00
118,952.00
1,544.67
0.00
1,544.67
1,057.00
1,280.00
0.00
4,823.35
25,000.00
32,160.35
407.50
50,661.93
51,069.43
33,220.42
290,630.87

346,196.38




Accounts as at 31/03/2025

CoSyst Control Systems GmbH Entwicklung/Herstellung elektr.Syst., Nirnberg

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Account Description

800

2868

956
963

965
966
970
977

1600

1600

1630
1631

1630
1631

Carried forward

Subscribed capital
Subscribed capital

Net accumulated losses
Net accumulated losses

of which accumulated losses brought forward
EUR 35,840.91 (EUR 67,844.30)
Accumulated losses brought forward

Provisions for taxes
Provision for trade tax, EStG s. 4(5b)
Provisions for corporate income tax

Other provisions

Provisions for personnel expenses
Provsns for record retntn obligations
Other provisions

Provsns period-end closing/ audit costs

Trade payables
Trade payables

of which remaining term up to 1 year EUR
1,562.25 (EUR 652.34)
Trade payables

Liabilities to affiliated companies
Trade payables APAG Elektronik AG
Trd pybls to affltd comp rem.term 1 yr.

of which remaining term up to 1 year EUR
121,702.07 (EUR 128,339.46)

Trade payables APAG Elektronik AG

Trd pybls to affltd comp rem.term 1 yr.

EUR

8,107.00
5,220.00

38,000.00
550.00
21,110.00
7,200.00

100,903.82
20,798.25

Financial Year
EUR

50,000.00

16,587.62

13,327.00

66,860.00

1,662.25

121,702.07

' 236,863.70
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Prior Year
EUR

50,000.00

35,840.91

3,073.00
346.00
3,419.00

127,281.00
550.00
21,032.00
~7.200.00

'~ 156,063.00

652.34

128,339.46
0.00
128,339.46

302,632.89



Accounts as at 31/03/2025

CoSyst Control Systems GmbH Entwicklung/Herstellung elektr.Syst., Niirnberg

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Account Description

Brought forward

1700
1741
1742
1748

1741

1742

1700
1741
1742
1748

Other liabilities

Other liabilities

Wage and church tax payables

Social security liabilities

Liablts for amounts w/held fr employees

of which taxes EUR 40,613.81 (EUR 35,153.16)
Wage and church tax payables

of which social security EUR 9,231.88 (EUR
7,736.84)

Social security liabilities

of which remaining term up to 1 year EUR
53,767.17 (EUR 43,563.49)

Other liabilities

Wage and church tax payables

Social security liabilities

Liablts for amounts w/held fr employees

EUR

2,483.99
40,613.81
9,231.88
1,437.49

Financial Year
EUR

236,863.70

53,767.17

290,630.87

Page 10

Prior Year
EUR

302,632.89

0.00
35,153.16
7,736.84
673.49
43,563.49

346,196.38



Income statement accounts from 01/04/2024 to 31/03/2025

CoSyst Control Systems GmbH Entwicklung/Herstellung elektr.Syst., Niirnberg

Account Description

8338

2315
8820
8828

2735

2520
2660
2700
2742
8611

2660

4120
4121
4152
4156
4175

4130
4138

Carried forward

Sales
Tax-exempt sales 3rd country

Income from disposal of items of noncurrent
assets and from write-ups of items of fixed
assets

Disposals tngbl. fxd assets (book gain)

Rev. sales tngbl fxd assets, 19% VAT

Rev. sales tngbl fxd assets 4(1b) UStG

Income from reversal of provisions
Income from reversal of provisions

Miscellaneous other operating income
Prior - period income

Currency translation gains

Other income

Insurance recoveries/compensation paymts
Allctd.oth.n-c bnfts provsn car 19% VAT

of which income from currency translation EUR
4.23 (EUR 22.99)
Currency translation gains

Wages and salaries

Salaries

Refundable rewarding continued payment
Non-cash bnft/ serv employees

Exp. chge. prov. vac. pay

Travel expn reim brsmnt-home/workplc

Social security costs and expenses for old age
pensions and other benefits

Statutory social security expenses
Contrb. to occup. health/safety agency

EUR

0.00
0.00
0.00

1.37
4.23
0.00
0.00
39,004.27

2,395,849.32
30,149.88-
44,326.32
89,281.00-

2,069.10

432,958.22
16,500.00

Financial Year
EUR

3,578,000.00

0.00

105.20

39,009.87

2,322,813.86

449,458.22

844,842.99
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Prior Year
EUR

3,100,000.00

20,999.00-
16,176.47
5,154.00
331.47

199.15

3,450.00
22.99
0.20
3,699.91
32,801.07
39,974.17

2,113,915.83
16,018.31-
36,714.00
156,926.94
2,318.58

2,152,857.04

386,676.36
~9,000.00
395,676.36

591,971.39



Income statement accounts from 01/04/2024 to 31/03/2025

CoSyst Control Systems GmbH Entwicklung/Herstellung elektr.Syst., Niirnberg

Account

Brought forward

4822
4830
4831
4832
4855

4210
4228
4240
4250

4360
4380

4805
4806
4809

4520
4530
4540

4610
4650

Carried forward

Description

Depreciation and amortization

Of noncurrent intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment

Amortisation of intngbl fixed assets

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Depreciation of buildings

Depreciation of vehicles

Immediate write-off of low-value assets

Occupancy costs

Rent (immovable property)
Incidental rental/lease exp. (SBI)
Gas, electricity, water

Cleaning

Insurance premiums, fees and contributions
Insurance premiums
Contributions

Cost of third-party repairs and maintenance
Repairs/maintenance operat/office equipm
Hardware / software maintenance expenses
Other repairs and maintenance

Vehicle costs
Vehicle-insurances

Current vehicle-operting costs
Vehicle-repairs

Advertising and travel costs
Marketing costs
Entertainment expenses

EUR

18,376.00
23,993.48
7,789.00
33,441.00
3,453.11

79,899.46
26,863.20
0.00

_ 7.781.42

3,203.85
2,847.84

385.40
24,097.05
479.60

18,524.94
19,191.90
19,606.82

34,965.32
3,832.13

38,797.45-

Financial Year

EUR

844,842.99

87,052.59

114,544.08

6,051.69

24,962.05

57,323.66

554,908.92
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Prior Year
EUR

591,971.39

11,193.95
22,904.63

7,789.00
43,024.25

4,845.47

89,757.30

78,339.00
27,535.65
185.17

_ 7,529.40

113,589.22

2,746.15
1,146.20

3,892.35

320.70
35,445.31
340.18

36,106.19

20,381.41
22,087.65
12,170.39
54,639.45

0.00
5,014.88

5,014.88-

293,986.88



Income statement accounts from 01/04/2024 to 31/03/2025

CoSyst Control Systems GmbH Entwicklung/Herstellung elektr.Syst., Niirnberg

Account

Brought forward

4654
4660
4664

4900
4909
4910
4920
4925
4930
4945
4952
49585
4957
4960
4964
4970
4980
4985

2310
2311

2020
2150

2150

Carried forward

Description

Advertising and travel costs
Non-deductible entertainm. expenses
Employee travel expenses

Employee trav. expn, addnl substnc costs

Miscellaneous operating costs
Other operating expenses

Purchased services/ third-party services
Postage

Telephone

Internet expenses

Office supplies

Training costs

Recruitment

Bookkeeping expenses

Period-end closing and audit costs
Rent fixtures/fittings (movable assets)
Expensions for licences, concessions
Incidental monetary transaction costs
Operating supplies

Tools and minor equipment

Losses from the disposal of noncurrent assets

Disposals tngbl fxd ass. net carr. amnt.
Dispsl intngbl fxd ass. net carr. amnt.

Miscellaneous other operating expenses
Prior-period expenses
Currency translation losses

of which currency translation losses EUR 0.00
(EUR 583.78)

Currency translation losses

EUR

38,797 .45-

1,642.35
73,108.05

4,728.40

2,903.11
93,429.01
208.14
36,995.09
15,365.25
131.93
13,015.30
0.00
15,440.60
5,700.00
1,653.61
195,000.21
1,405.47
13,090.32

1,311.95

3.00
0.00

9,693.01
0.00

Financial Year
EUR

554,908.92

118,276.25

395,549.99

3.00

9,693.01

31,386.67
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Prior Year
EUR

293,986.88
5,014.88-

2,149.24
82,907.39

1,413.97

91,485.48

4,537.85
12,960.00
140.24
29,027.50
14,146.62
134.04
9,051.67
54,587.00
4,930.00
5,700.00
1,5648.00
0.00
1,399.64
2,761.10

4,860.36

145,784.02

1.00
3.00
4.00

173.63
583.78
757.41

55,955.97



Page 14
Income statement accounts from 01/04/2024 to 31/03/2025

CoSyst Control Systems GmbH Entwicklung/Herstellung elektr.Syst., Niirnberg

Financial Year Prior Year
Account Description EUR EUR EUR
Brought forward 31,386.67 55,955.97
Interest and similar expenses
2117 Interest shareholder with equity > 25% 0.00 5,644.96
Taxes on income and earnings
2200 Corporate income tax 4,620.00 328.00
2208 Solidarity surcharge 254.00 18.00
2250 Expns addns./reversals deferred taxes 0.00 12,500.00
4320 Trade tax ~ 5,034.00 3,073.00
9,908.00 15,919.00
of which expenses from additions to and
reversals of deferred taxes EUR 0.00 (EUR
12,500.00)
2250 Expns addns./reversals deferred taxes
Other taxes
4510 Motor vehicle tax 2,225.38 2,388.62
Net income for the financial year 19,253.29 32,003.39
Loss carried forward from the previous year
2868 Accumulated losses brought forward 35,840.91 67,844.30

Net accumulated losses 16,587.62 35,840.91




Development of fixed assets from 01/04/2024 to 31/03/2025

CoSyst Control Systems GmbH Entwicklung/Herstellung elektr.Syst., Niirnberg

Page 15

description development value at addition transfer depreciation value at
of 01/04/2024 disposal- write-up - 31/03/2025
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
27  Computer software acqu.-/prod. 172,876.85 172,876.85
depreciation 123,793.85 18,376.00 142,169.85
book-values 49,083.00 18,376.00 30,707.00
179  Other buildings acqu.-/prod.-c 54,512.99 54,512.99
depreciation 23,746.99 7,789.00 31,535.99
book-values 30,766.00 7,789.00 22,977.00
320 Passenger cars acqu.-/prod.c 238,891.68 238,891.68
depreciation 142,678.68 33,441.00 176,119.68
book-values 96,213.00 33,441.00 62,772.00
400 Operating equipment acqu.-/prod.c 89,826.27 13,581.48 99,510.35
3,897.40-
depreciation 63,321.27 18,732.48 78,159.35
3,894.40-
book-values 26,505.00 13,581.48 18,732.48 21,351.00
3.00-
420 Office fittings acqu.-/prod.-c 52,968.53 2,799.00 55,767.53
depreciation 15,677.53 5,261.00 20,938.53
book-values 37,291.00 2,799.00 5,261.00 34,829.00
480 Low-value assets acqu.-/prod.-c 0.00 3,453.11 0.00
3,453.11-
depreciation 0.00 3,453.11 0.00
3,453.11-
book-values 0.00 3,453.11 3,453.11 0.00
acqu.-prod.-c 609,076.32 19,833.59 621,559.40
7,350.51-
depreciation 369,218.32 87,052.59 448,923.40
7,347.51-
book-values 239,858.00 19,833.59 87,052.59 172,636.00

3.00-




Development of fixed assets from 01/04/2024 to 31/03/2025

CoSyst Control Systems GmbH Entwicklung/Herstellung elektr.Syst., Niirnberg

Page 16

description APC-date devel. value at addition transfer depreciation value at
kind of depr. of 01/04/2024 disposal- write-up - 31/03/2025
ul %depr. EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR

27 Computer software
27021 Altium; Lizenzen 31/08/2016 APC 49,195.00 49,195.00
Linear depr. 49,194.00 49,194.00
5/00 20.00 by 1.00 1.00
27022 Vectro; Softwarelizenz Werkzeug 01103/2016 APC 13,960.00 13,960.00
Linear depr. 13,959.00 13,959.00
5/00 20.00 bv 1.00 1.00
27025 Master-License Matlab Simulink 07/04/2017 APC 7,850.00 7,850.00
Linear depr. 7,849.00 7,849.00
3/00 33.33 bv 1.00 1.00
27026 Software-Lizenz CATIA 03/10/2017 APC 19,360.00 19,360.00
Linear depr. 19,359.00 19,359.00
5/00 20.00 by %00 1.00
27027 ESD Project, Visio 2016 31/0712018 APC 1,564.00 1,564.00
inear depr. 1,563.00 1,563.00
5/00 20.00 ﬁv 1.00 1.00
27028 Desys, Software-Lizenz Catmse 14/05/2019 APC 21,350.00 21,350.00
Catia Linear depr. 20,994.00 355.00 21,349.00
5/00 20.00 bv 356.00 355.00 1.00
27029 Desys, PX 1 PPR PDM Gateway, 20/11/2020 APC 3,609.90 3,609.90
Lizenz Linear depr. 2,467.90 722.00 3,189.90
5/00 20.00 by 1,142.00 722.00 420.00
27030 Solidworks-Lizenz 29/03/2021 APC 3,630.00 3,630.00
Linear depr. 2,239.00 726.00 2,965.00
5/00 20.00 bv 1,391.00 726.00 665.00
27031 Vector Informatik Software CANape 30/09/2022 APC 6,590.00 6,590.00
Linear depr. 2,087.00 1,318.00 3,405.00
5/00 20.00 bv 4,503.00 1,318.00 3,185.00
27032 Ansys SPEOS Pro 11/12/2023 APC 27,682.50 27,682.50
Linear depr. 3,076.50 9,227.00 12,303.50
3/00 33.33 bv 24,606.00 9,227.00 15,379.00
27033 Circuit Mind ACE (Al Plattform) 14/02/2024 APC 18,085.45 18,085.45
Linear depr. 1,005.45 6,028.00 7,033.45
3/00 33.33 bv 17,080.00 6,028.00 11,052.00
Computer software APC 172,876.85 172,876.85
depr. 123,793.85 18,376.00 142,169.85
bv 49,083.00 18,376.00 30,707.00




Development of fixed assets from 01/04/2024 to 31/03/2025

CoSyst Control Systems GmbH Entwicklung/Herstellung elektr.Syst., Niirnberg

Page 17

description APC-date devel. value at addition transfer depreciation value at
kind of depr. of 01/04/2024 disposal- write-up - 31/03/2025
ul %depr. EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR

179 Other buildings
179001 Einbauten Frankenstr. 30/11/2020 APC 36,089.30 36,089.30
Linear depr. 17,620.30 5,157.00 22,777.30
7/00 14.29 bv 18,469.00 5,157.00 13,312.00
179002 Dunkelkammer 30/06/2021 APC 10,427,69 10,427.69
Linear depr. 4,222.69 1,490.00 5,712.69
7/00 14.29 by 6,205.00 1,490.00 4,715.00
179003 Akustik-Wand 04/10/2021 APC 3,285.00 3,285.00
Linear depr. 1,174.00 469.00 1,643.00
7/00 14.29 bv 2,411.00 469.00 1,642.00
179004 Akustik-Wand || 16/03/2023 APC 4,711.00 4,711.00
Linear depr. 730.00 673.00 1,403.00
7100 14.29 bv 3,081.00 673.00 3,308.00
Other buildings APC 54,512.99 54,512.99
depr. 23,746.99 7,789.00 31,535.99
bv 30,766.00 7,789.00 22,977.00
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description APC-date devel. value at addition transfer depreciation value at
kind of depr. of 01/04/2024 disposal- write-up - 31/03/2025
ul %depr. EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR

320 Passenger cars
320007 BMW 420 xd, N-AC 1060 12/07/2018 APC 32,731.09 32,731.09
Linear depr. 32,730.09 32,730.09
5/00 20.00 bv 1.00 1.00
320009 VW Passat gebraucht, N-AC 8080 l 0/01/2019 APC 12,110.00 12,110.00
Inear depr. 12,109.00 12,109.00
300 33.33 by 1.00 1.00
320013 VW Passat Variant, EZ 8/2019, N- 25/11/2019 APC 30,840.34 30,840.34
WR 587 '—'"eafz depr. 27,242.34 3,597.00 30,839.34
5/00 20.00 bv 3,598.00 3,597.00 1.00
320014 VW Passat Variant, EZ 4/2017, N-BU  01/04/2020 APC 13,991.77 13.991.77
458 Linear depr. 13,990.77 13,990.77
3/00 33.33 bv 1.00 1.00
320016 VW Passat, EZ 16/2020, N-YF 205 10/03/2021 APC 38,655.46 38,655.46
Linear depr. 23,838.46 7,731.00 31,569.46
5/00 20.00 bv 14,817.00 7,731.00 7,086.00
320017 Seat Leon Hybrid N-YH 198E 29/07/2021 APC 31,924.37 31,924.37
Linear depr. 17,559.37 6,385.00 23,944.37
5/00 20.00 bv 14,365.00 6,385.00 7,980.00
320018 VW Passat Variant R-Line 4Motion, ~ 02/03/2023 APC 42,008.40 42,008.40
EZ 04/2022, N-AC 143 Linear depr. 9,103.40 8,402.00 17,505.40
5/00 20.00 bv 32,905.00 8,402.00 24,503.00
320019 Skoda Kodiag RS 2.0 TDI DSG 4x4, ~ 07/06/2023 APC 36,630.25 36,630.25
N-YW 344 Linear depr. 6,105.25 7,326.00 13,431.25
500 20.00 bv 30,525.00 7,326.00 23,199.00
Passenger cars APC 238,891.68 238,891.68
depr. 142,678.68 33,441.00 176,119.68
bv 96,213.00 33,441.00 62,772.00
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CoSyst Control Systems GmbH Entwicklung/Herstellung elektr.Syst., Niirnberg

description APC-date devel. value at addition transfer depreciation value at
kind of depr. of 01/04/2024 disposal- write-up - 31/03/2025
ul %depr. EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR

400 Operating equipment
400054 Dekom; LifeSize Icon 600-10x Optical ~ 07/10/2016 APC 5,009.92 5,009.92
Camera Linear depr. 5,008.92 5,008.92
500 20.00 bv 1.00 1.00
400060 Fujitsu Celsius R970 power 16/11/2018 APC 6,365.09 6,365.09
Workstation Linear depr. 6,364.09 6,364.09
4/00 25.00 by 1.00 1.00
400064 Cognex, LAB unit 05/09/2018 APC 5,854.75 5,854.76
Linear depr. 5,367.75 486.00 5,853.75
5/00 20.00 bv 487.00 486.00 1.00
400065 KITin 1900 und KITin 2080 MIG 26/08/2019 APC 1,500.91 1,500.91- 0.00
Linear depr. 1,499.91 1,499.91- 0.00
3/00 33.33 bv 1.00 1.00- 0.00
400066 Cognex, Bildbearbeitung 16/12/2019 APC 1,497.00 1,497.00
Linear depr. 1,297.00 199.00 1,496.00
5/00 20.00 bv 200.00 199.00 1.00
400067 Cognex, Bildbearbeitung 26/02/2020 APC 1,128.00 1,128.00
Linear depr. 942.00 185.00 1,127.00
500 20.00 bv 186.00 185.00 1.00
400068 Dell, XPS Laptop 24/11/2019 APC 1,253.92 1,253.92- 0.00
Linear depr. 1,252.92 1,252.92- 0.00
3/00 33.33 bv 1.00 1.00- 0.00
400069 Dell Latitude 3500 BTX 01/05/2020 APC 1,142.57 1,142.57- 0.00
Linear depr. 1,141.57 1,141.57- 0.00
3/00 33.33 bv 1.00 1.00- 0.00
400070 Dell Mobile Workstation 5550 BTX, |~ 02/02/2021 APC 2,297.76 2,297.76
Linear depr. 2,296.76 2,296.76
3/00 33.33 by 1.00 1.00
400071 Dell Mobite Workstation 5550 BTX, Il 02/02/2021 APC 2,297.76 2,297.76
Linear depr. 2,296.76 2,296.76
3/00 33.33 bv 1.00 1.00
400072 Dell, Vostro-Laptop 5502 03/03/2021 APC 804.10 804.10
Linear depr. 803.10 803.10
3/00 33.33 bv 1.00 1.00
400073 Intelligent Laser Processing Head 60 01/04/2020 APC 20,500.00 20,500.00
w Linear depr. 16,400.00 4,099.00 20,499.00
5/00 20.00 bv 4,100.00 4,099.00 1.00
400074 Dell Latitude 5310 12/04/2021 APC 1,256.59 1,256.59
Linear depr. 1,255.59 1,255.59
3/00 33.33 bv 1.00 1.00
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description APC-date devel. value at addition transfer depreciation value at
kind of depr. of 01/04/2024 disposal- write-up - 31/03/2025
ul %depr. EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR

400 Operating equipment
400075 Samsung Monitor incl. Stinder 01/08/2021 APC 2,380.56 2,380.56
Linear depr. 2,115.56 264.00 2,379.56
3/00 33.33 bv 265.00 264.00 1.00
400076 Samsung Monitor inc!. 01/08/2021 APC 1,847.81 1,847.81
Wandhalterung Linear depr. 1,643.81 203.00 1,846.81
3/00 33.33 bv 204.00 203.00 1.00
400077 Dell Vostro 7510 15/02/2022 APC 1,638.58 1,638.58
Linear depr. 1,183.58 454.00 1,637.58
SO0 S bv 455.00 454.00 1.00
400078 Compact Spectrometer 04/08/2021 APC 2,143.24 2,143.24
Linear depr. 1,144.24 429.00 1,573.24
500 20.00 bv 999.00 429.00 570.00
400079 Optris, Prozess-Imager 26/11/2021 APC 3,961.00 3,961.00
Linear depr. 1,914.00 792.00 2,706.00
i bv 2,047.00 792.00 1,255.00
400080 Dell, Laptop Vostro 7510 12/07/2022 APC 898.80 898.80
Linear depr. 525.80 300.00 825.80
3/00 33.33 bv 373.00 300.00 73.00
400081 Dell, Laptop Vostro 7510 12/07/2022 APC 898.80 898.80
Linear depr. 525.80 300.00 825.80
3/00 33.33 bv 373.00 300.00 73.00
400082 Dell, Laptop Vostro 7510 12/07/2022 APC 898.80 898.80
Linear depr. 525.80 300.00 825.80
3/00 33.33 bv 373.00 300.00 73.00
400083 Dell, Laptop Vostro 7510 12/07/2022 APC 898.80 898.80
Linear depr. 525.80 300.00 825.80
3/00 33.33 by 373.00 300.00 73.00
400084 Dell, Mobile Workstation 5570 CTO 29/10/2022 APC 2,321.21 2,321.21
Linear depr. 1,161.21 774.00 1,935.21
3/00 3333 bv 1,160.00 774.00 386.00
400085 Dell, Mobile Workstation 5570 CTO 29/10/2022 APC 2,321.21 2,321.21
Linear depr. 1,161.21 774.00 1,935.21
SMO0RI3:33 bv 1,160.00 774.00 386.00
400086 Dell, Laptop Vostro 5625 29/10/2022 APC 953.53 953.53
Linear depr. 477.53 318.00 795.53
SI00mE5:00 bv 476.00 318.00 158.00
400087 Dell, Laptop Vostro 5620 01/02/2023 APC 902.27 902.27
Linear depr. 352.27 301.00 653.27
IR R bv 550.00 301.00 249,00
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description APC-date devel. value at addition transfer depreciation value at
kind of depr. of 01/04/2024 disposal- write-up - 31/03/2025
ul %depr. EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR

400 Operating equipment
400088 Dell, Laptop Vostro 5620 01/02/2023 APC 902.27 902.27
Linear depr. 352.27 301.00 653.27
3/00 33.33 bv 550.00 301.00 249.00
400089 Deli, Laptop Vostro 7620 01/02/2023 APC 1,434.39 1,434.39
Linear depr. 558.39 478.00 1,036.39
3/00 33.33 bv 876.00 478.00 398.00
400090 Dell, Laptop Vostro 3530 28/04/2023 APC 914.24 914.24
Linear depr. 305.24 305.00 610.24
3/00 33.33 bv 609.00 305.00 304.00
400091 Dell, Laptop Vostro 3530 28/04/2023 APC 914.24 914.24
Linear depr. 305.24 305.00 610.24
S0 St bv 609.00 305.00 304.00
400092 Dell, Laptop Vostro 3530 28/04/2023 APC 914.24 914.24
Linear depr. 305.24 305.00 610.24
3/00 33.33 bv 609.00 305.00 304.00
400093 Dell, Laptop Vostro 3530 28/04/2023 APC 914.24 914.24
Linear depr. 305.24 305.00 610.24
S8 3333 bv 609.00 305.00 304.00
400094 Aruba, Switch 6100 48G 18/08/2023 APC 2,565.76 2,565.76
Linear depr. 570.76 855.00 1,425.76
e BSS bv 1,995.00 855.00 1,140.00
400095 Dell, Laptop Latitude 5440 BTX Base ~ 22/09/2023 APC 1,007.52 1,007.52
Linear depr. 196.52 336.00 532.52
3/00 33.33 bv 811.00 336.00 475.00
400096 Dell, Laptop Latitude 5440 BTX Base ~ 22/09/2023 APC 1,007.52 1,007.52
Linear depr. 196.52 336.00 532.52
3/00 33.33 bv 811.00 336.00 475.00
400097 Dell, Laptop Latitude 5440 BTX Base ~ 22/09/2023 APC 1,007.52 1,007.52
Linear depr. 196.52 336.00 532.52
3/00 33.33 bv 811.00 336.00 475.00
400098 Aruba, Switch 6100 48G 18/08/2023 APC 2,339.35 2,339.35
Linear depr. 520.35 780.00 1,300.35
3/00 33.33 bv 1,819.00 780.00 1,039.00
400099 Dell, Laptop Latitude 5540 GCTO 01/12/2023 APC 1,466.00 1,466.00
Base Linear depr. 163.00 489.00 652.00
3/00 33.33 e 1,303.00 489.00 814.00
400100 Dell, Laptop Latitude 5540 GCTO 01/12/2023 APC 1,466.00 1,466.00
Base Linear depr. 163.00 489.00 652.00
3/00 33.33 by 1,303.00 489.00 814.00
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description APC-date devel. value at addition transfer depreciation value at
kind of depr. of 01/04/2024 disposal- write-up - 31/03/2025
ul %depr. EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
400 Operating equipment

400101 Dell, Mobile Precision Workstation 0?/06/2024 APC 0.00 2,185.64 2,185.64
3591 Linear depr. 0.00 607.64 607.64
3/00 33.33 bv 0.00 2,185.64 607.64 1,578.00
400102 Dell, Latitude 5550 GCTO Base 08/06/2024 APC 0.00 1,616.29 1,616.29
Linear depr. 0.00 449.29 44929
3/00 33.33 bv 0.00 1,616.29 449.29 1,167.00
400103 Dell, Laptop XPS 13 9350 02/11/2024 APC 0.00 1,987.90 1,987.90
Linear depr. 0.00 276.90 276.90
3/00 33.33 bv 0.00 1,987.90 276.90 1,711.00
400104 Dell, Laptop Latitude 5550 BTX Base ~ 30/10/2024 APC 0.00 1,025.66 1.025.66
Linear depr. 0.00 171.66 171.66
3/00 33.33 by 0.00 1,025.66 171.66 854.00
400105 Dell, Laptop Latitude 5550 BTX Base ~ 30/10/2024 APC 0.00 1,025.66 1,025.66
Linear depr. 0.00 171.66 171.66
3/00 33.33 bv 0.00 1,025.66 171.66 854.00
400106 Dell Precision 5860 Tower XCTO 18/10/2024 APC 0.00 5,740.33 5,740.33
Base Linear depr. 0.00 957.33 957.33
3/00 33.33 bv 0.00 574033 957.33 4,783.00
Operating equipment APC 89,826.27 13,581.48 99,510.35

3,897.40-
depr. 63,321.27 18,732.48 78,159.35

3,894.40-
bv 26,505.00 13,581.48 18,732.48 21,351.00

3.00-
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description APC-date devel. value at addition transfer depreciation value at
kind of depr. of 01/04/2024 disposal- write-up - 31/03/2025
ul %depr. EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR

420 Office fittings
420005 Einrichtung Besprechung | 16/10/2020 APC 10,179.41 10,179.41
Linear depr. 2,741.41 783.00 3,524.41
13/00 7.69 bv 7,438.00 783.00 6,655.00
420006 Einrichtung Besprechung |l 16/10/2020 APC 9,755.20 9,755.20
Linear depr. 2,629.20 750.00 3,379.20
13/00 7.69 bv 7,126.00 750.00 6,376.00
420007 Einrichtung Besprechung Ill 16/10/2020 APC 3,861.47 3,861.47
Linear depr. 1,040.47 297.00 1,337.47
13/00 7.69 bv 2,821.00 297.00 2,524.00
420008 Einrichtung Empfangsbereich 16/10/2020 APC 4,572.09 4,572.09
Linear depr. 1,232.09 352,00 1,584.09
13/00 7.69 bv 3,340.00 352.00 2,988.00
420009 Einrichtung Garderobenbereich 16/10/2020 APC 2,006.06 2,006.06
Linear depr. 542.06 154.00 696.06
13/00 7.69 bv 1,464.00 154.00 1,310.00
420010 Einrichtg. Aufenthalt/Teekiiche 16/10/2020 APC 18,629.08 18,629.08
Linear depr. 5,016.08 1,433.00 6,449.08
i5E Fees bv 13,613.00 1,433.00 12,180.00
420011 Dark Inox Kaffeeautomat 16/10/2020 APC 1,980.22 1,980.22
Linear depr. 1,979.22 1,979.22
3/00 33.33 v 1.00 1.00
420012 Active 2.0, Schreibtisch 2000x900 25/07/2023 APC 992.50 992.50
mm Linear depr. 248.50 331.00 579.50
3/00 33.33 by 744.00 331.00 413.00
420013 Active 2.0, Schreibtisch 2000x900 3_5/07/2023 APC 992.50 992.50
mm inear depr. 248.50 331.00 579.50
3/00 33.33 by 744.00 331.00 413.00
420014 Active 2.0, Schreibtisch 1800x800 03/04/2024 APC 0.00 933.00 933.00
mm Linear depr. 0.00 311.00 311.00
3100 33.33 bv 0.00 933.00 311.00 622.00
420015 Active 2.0, Schreibtisch 1800x800 03/04/2024 APC 0.00 933.00 933.00
mm Linear depr. 0.00 311.00 311.00
3/00 33.33 bv 0.00 933.00 311.00 622.00
420016 Active 2.0, Schreibtisch 1800x800 07/08/2024 APC 0.00 933.00 933.00
mm Linear depr. 0.00 208.00 208.00
3/00 33.33 bv 0.00 933.00 208.00 725.00
Office fittings APC 52,968.53 2,799.00 55,767.53
depr. 15,677.53 5,261.00 20,938.53
bv 37,291.00 2,799.00 5,261.00 34,829.00




Development of fixed assets from 01/04/2024 to 31/03/2025

CoSyst Control Systems GmbH Entwicklung/Herstellung elektr.Syst., Niirnberg

Page 24

description APC-date devel. value at addition transfer depreciation value at
kind of depr. of 01/04/2024 disposal- write-up - 31/03/2025
ul %depr. EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
480 Low-value assets
480021 Zugang 2024/2025 31/03/2025 APC 0.00 3,453.11 0.00
GWG-Sofort 3,453.11-
1/00 100.00 depr. 0.00 3,453.11 0.00
3,453.11-
bv 0.00 3,453.11 3,453.11 0.00
Low-value assets APC 0.00 3,453.11 0.00
3,453.11-
depr. 0.00 3,453.11 0.00
3,453.11-
bv 0.00 3,453.11 3,453.11 0.00
_———————————___———
APC 609,076.32 19,833.59 621,559.40
7,350.51-
depr. 369,218.32 87,052.59 448,923.40
7,347.51-
bv 239,858.00 19,833.59 87,052.59 172,636.00

3.00-




APAG Elektronik LLC
Balance Sheet

As at March 31, 2025
ASSETS
March 31 March 31
2025 2024
Current Assets
Cash in Bank 22147 19'965
Accounts receivable 2’616'115 2'033'841
Other receivables 132’338 88’338
Prepaid Insurance 4’690 4’550
2'775'290 2’146'694
Capital Assets
Computer Equipment 22'434 22°434
Leasehold Improvements 1’393 1’393
Vehicles 71184 71'184
95’011 95011
Less: accumulated amortization -70’150 -61’566
24’861 33’445
Other Assets
Tax benefit for future years 44’000

Total Assets 2'800°150 2'224’139




APAG Elektronik LLC
Balance Sheet
As at March 31, 2025

Liabilities
March 31 March 31

2025 2024
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 138’000 143’828
Accounts payable APAG Canada 1'952'260 430179
Accounts payable APAG Czech Republic 7'560 1’880
HST payable 1’646 6’320

2'099'466 582’207
Long-term Liabilities
Loan payable - APAG Holding 2’000°000 2'962'789
Total Liabilities 4099466 2'962'789

Shareholders’ Deficit

Common Stock
Issued 100 100
100 common stock 212’380 212’380
Paid in capital -1’511'796 -1'533’337
Deficit -1'299'316 -1'320°857
Total Liabilities and Shareholders” Deficit 2’800°150 2’224’139

W05 7005
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APAG Elektronik LLC
Balance Sheet

As at March 31, 2025
March 31 March 31
2025 2024
Deficit, beginning of year -1’533'334 -1'167°417
Net income 21’538 -365'920

Deficit, end of year -1'511'796 -1'533’337




Revenues

Sales- serial sales

Sales - non-serial sales
Sales - R&D (3rd party)
Sales - sample sales

Sales - claim cost serial sales
Other Income

Cost of Sales

Cost of goods sold - serial sales
Cost of goods sold - non serial
Cost of goods sold - R+D
Freight

Gross Profit

Expenses

Amortization

Bank Charges

Exchange Loss

Insurance

Interest expense

Meals and entertainment
Office supplies
Professional fees

Rent and utilities
Subscription and software
Telephone

Travel

Wages and benefit

Income before provision for income taxes

ordinary Expenses
Provision (Recovery) for income taxes

Net Income

APAG Elektronik LLC
Statement of Income
As at March 31, 2025

March 31
2025

17'152'696
840’456
342’846

-38'107

18'297°891

16'295'062
764’359
325'704

39’421

17°424°545

873’346

8’584
4’528

62’375
29'453

9'834
26’861

10’436
79°582
493’076

724’730

148’616

127°078

21’538

March 31

2024

9'457'545
1'044'296
1'795'354

12'297'195

8'975'063
992'082
1'705’586
34’667

11'707'398

589’798

11'870
4031

89’949
138'050

6’339
2’090
26’684
788
6'454
68’003
585’988
940'248

-350'451

15’469

-365'920




Current Assets

Cash in Bank

Accounts receivable APAG Elektronik s.r.o.

Accounts receivable APAG Elektronik LLC
HST Recoverable

Other receivables

Inventory

Prepaid Expenses

Advance payment for assets

Security Deposits

Capital Assets

Computer Equipment
Computer Software
Computer Wiring
Equipment

Furniture and Fixtures
Leasehold Improvements
Vehicles

Less: accumulated amortization

Total Assets

APAG Elektronik Corporation

Balance Sheet
As at March 31, 2025

ASSETS

March 31
2025

45'802

2'793'043
452'215
238’170

3'790°179

71’821

2'002'029

149’894

9'543'154

359892
435’094
68'228
9'594'085
140’710
3'062'389
229101

13'889'499

-6'522'447 .

7'367'052

16910206

March 31
2024

107933
2'902'134
583’837
622'866
237°352
3'330'582
65’515
1'087'161
149'894

8'990'274

337214
414’348
68'228
8960930
137’608
3'024'724
209’344

13'152'396

-5'225'367

7'927'028

16'917°303




Current Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accounts payable APAG Elektronik AG
Accounts payable APAG Elektronik s.r.o.

HST payable

Other Liabilities

Other Liabilities APAG Elektronik AG

Other Liabilities CoSyst Control Systems GmbH
Accrued expenses

Long-term Liabilities

Loan payable - APAG Elektronik AG
Other long term debt

Loan FEDEV

Total Liabilities

Shareholders” Deficit

Common Stock
Issued

1'000 common shares
Deficit

Total Liabilities and Shareholders” Deficit

APAG Elektronik Corporation

Balance Sheet
As at March 31, 2025
Liabilities

March 31 March 31

2025 2024
1'918'008 4'677'490
47’510 0
7212810 906
8’861 7’366
14’396 33'030
717°195 260'163
13'879
397’552 466'868
10’316'333 5'459'702
3025’000 13’500'000

87'103
3'851'442 3'829°400
6'963'545 17'329°400
17'279'877 22'789'102
10’000 10°000
-379'672 -5'881'799
-369'672 -5'871'799
16'910°206 16’917'303
-~ ~
1501 Do



APAG Elektronik Corporation

Balance Sheet
As at March 31, 2025
March 31 March 31
2025 2024
Deficit, beginning of year -5881°'799 -15'237'158
Net incbme 5502127 5502127
Deficit, end of year -379'672 -9'735'031
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APAG Elektronik LLC

Statement of income
As at March 31, 2025
March 31 March 31
2025 2024
Revenues
Sales- serial sales 22'822'562 17'399°907
Sales - non-serial sales 1084247 17326005
Sales - R&D 545167 2'286'666
Sales - sample sales
Grant revenue & other income 163’643 128342
Deferred grant amortization 119’828 398'207
Price Difference revenue
24'735'448 21°539'126
Cost of Sales
Material Costs 21'305'950 14'577°441
21'305'950 14'577'441
Gross Profit 3429°498 6961685
Operating Expenses
Advertising and promotion 5’448 5’651
Amortization 1'401'025 1310990
Car Expenses 10'736 15'977
Bank charges and interest 17'086 27'309
Director’s fee 3000 3000
Duty and freight 432313 688'777
Equipment rental 3029 3'009
FEDEV Loan interest accretion 316’870 : 48'473
Insurance 111509 61’493
intercompany interest 482'882 990’879
IT services 24’329
Loss/{Gain) on foreign exchange 239700 -17'550
Gain on disposat of assets -15'016 0
’ Meals and Entertainment 23'428 17’341
Nitrogen 7'438 19’570
Office and general expenses 21°045 43’803
Professional fees 240282 281247
Rent 240777 334’578
Repairs and maintenance 213’657 296’627
Shop supplies 52361 194’898
Software maintenance 119’662 111’113
Telephone 27840 27'868
Training and seminars 38001 36’002
Travel 161364 112'401
Utilities 109°028 144’178
Wages and salaries 3'963'757 5'526'253
8'427'220 10308717
Extraordinary income long term loan APAG Elektronik AG -11'259'849 -16'336'055
Extraordinary Expenses 760'000 237352
Income before provision for income taxes 5'502'127 -3'347°032
Provision (Recovery) for income taxes 3'396'312
Net Income
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----------------
!

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KANORIA AFRICA TEXTILES PRIVATE LIMITED COMPANY, ETHIOPIA

We _have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kanoria Africa Textiles Private
Limited Company, which comprise the balance sheet as of 31 March 2025, Statement of Profit
or Loss and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

MANAGEMENTSS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation of and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards. This responsibility includes:
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. As
discussed in the following paragraphs, we conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluvating the appropriateness and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statement presents fairly the financial position of Kanoria Africa

Textiles Private Limited Company, as of 31 March 2025, and its operational results for the
year then ended in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards.
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Kanoria Africa Textiles Private Limited Company
Notes to Financial Statements

BACKGROUND
Kanoria Africa Textiles Private Limited Company is a company established in Ethiopia, Oromia Regional
State, Bishoftu area and is engaged in the manufacture and sale of textile products.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Accounting Convention;

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Princi'ples (QAAP)
under the historical cost convention except for Property, plant and equipment (PPE) (refer accounting policy for
PPE) and are applied consistently,

b. Functional and Presentation currency:

These Financial Statements are presented in United States Dollars (USD) which is also the Company’s
functional currency measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates. All amounts have been rounded-off to nearest USD, unless otherwise indicated.

o

. Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements require estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported
amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized
prospectively.

(=9

. Revenue Recognition:

Sales revenue is recognized on transfer of significant risk and rewards of the ownership of the goods to the
buyer and stated at net of trade discounts and rebates.

o

Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment were fair valued as on 1* April, 2015 by an external valuer and are measured at
fair value as on that date plus all subsequent costs which includes capitalised borrowing costs and other
overheads less depreciation,

f. Depreciation:

Depreciation is calculated using straight line method to allocate carrying costs, net of residual value, over the
estimated useful life of PPE. The useful lives have been determined based on the technical evaluation done by
the management and are as follows :

ears
Buildings 50
Plant and equipment S5to80
Furniture & Fixtures 10
Vehicles & Fork Lifis 8
Office equipments 3to5

g. Leasehold land;

The Company has obtained leasehld land from Oromia Regional State. The lease value is amortized over the
lease period of 80 years. This treatment is in accordance with the law and practice of lhe;c’qumys-‘“ ;'\“f-'ﬂ'/\‘l’,».\h‘
AT T Y44 7
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Kanoria Africa Textiles Private Limited Company
Notes to Financial Statements

h. Foreign Currency Transactions ;

Transactions in currency, other than functional currency (foreign currency), are record'ed at the rate of cxchanﬁe
prevalling on the date of transaction. Year end balance of foreign currency m'onetary items are tfanslated at the
Year end rates and the corresponding effect is given in the accounts. Transactions completed during the year are
adjusted on actual basis,

. Inventories:

Inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value, The cost of inventories is based on the first-
in-first-out formula, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production costs ar:id oth;r
costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition. In the case of finished goods and work-
in-progress, cost includes an appropriate share of overheads based on normal operating capacity.

—.

. Borrowing Costs;

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necess?l;:y
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost o ; ;
assel. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consnsalo
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

k. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Asscts:

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a p.resent
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an oulﬂow_of resources. Contmgent
liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the Notes on Accounts. Contingent assets are neither
recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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Revenue from operations
Other Income

Total Income

Expenses
Cost of Raw Materials and components consumed
Change in Inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Employee benefits expenses

Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Finance costs

Other expenses
Total expenses

Profit/(loss) for the year

Significant accounting policies

Kanoria Africa Textiles Private Limited Company
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March 2025

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Notes
USD USD
15 8,988,929 13,060,850
16 1,348,465 789,931
10,337,394 13,850,781
17 4,956,273 5,894,238
18 533,827 716,037
19 2,273,650 2,637,677
2A,2B 1,412,545 1,427,041
20 2,410,748 2,791,353
21 2,422,396 2,367,960
14,009,439 15,834,306
(3,672,045) (1,983,526)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Kanoria Africa Textiles Private Limited Company
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress
(¢) Other Intangible Assets
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Others
(€) Other Non-Current Assets

Current Assets
(@) Inventories
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents
(iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above
(v) Others
(c) Other Current Assets

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Equity Share Capital

Other Equity

Total Equity

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Other financial liabilities

Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(ii) Trade Payables

(iii) Other financial liabilities
(b) Other Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

Significant accounting policies

As at 31-March-2025

As at 31-March-2024

Notes
UsD USD

2A 31,926,434 33,266,455

5,084 89,095
2B - -

3 9,048 19,981

4 549,990 349,402

32,490,555 33,724,933

5 3,938,055 6,140,269

6 535,329 156,339

7A 284,388 1,442,668

7B 38,161 182,009

3 186,404 415,857

4 913,517 759,827

5,895,855 9,096,969

38,386,410 42,821,902

8 27,019,992 27,019,992
9 (19,637,880) (15,965,835)

7,382,113 11,054,158

10 24,426,352 23,827,937

11 334,468 797,434

24,760,820 24,625,370

12 2,391,603 2,870,927

13 816,149 918,907

11 2,252,182 2,158,964

14 783,544 1,193,577

6,243,478 7,142,374

31,004,298 31,767,745

38,386,410 42,821,902

"y

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Kanoria Africa Textiles Private Limited Company
Notes to Financial Statements
31st March 2025 J1st March 2024
UsD USh
Non -Current Current Non -Current Current
3. Other Financial Assets
Security Deposits (Unsecured considered good) 9,048 186,404 19,981 415,857
Total Other Financial Assets 9,048 186,404 19,981 415,857
4. Other Assets
(a) Capital Advances .- - - &
(b) Advances other than Capital Advances
(i) Other Advances 549,990 409,375 349,402 334,280
(ii) Balance with Government Authorities . 503,641 - 425,547
Total Other Assets 549,990 913,517 349,402 759,827
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
USD USD
5. Inventories
Raw Materials (At cost) 1,151,503 2,743,352
Work-in-Progress (At cost) 967,430 1,410,009
Finished Goods (At lower of cost and et realisable value) 1,020,265 L111,513
Garment Accessories 17,909 46,456
Stores & Spare Parts (At cost) 780,947 828,939
Total Inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value 3,938,055 6,140,269
6. Trade Receivables
- Secured, considered good - -
- Unsecured, considered good 535,329 156,339
- Doubtful - -
- Less: Allowance for Doubtful Receivable - -
535329 156,339
Note: Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule is given in separate page
7A. Cash and cash equivalent
Balances with banks:
- On Current Accounts 275,908 1,438,551
Cheques on hand
Cash on hand 8,480 4,118
284,388 1,442,668
7B. Other bank balances
Earmarked balances with Banks (Margin Money Account) 38,161 182,009
38,161 182,009
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Tibebe Menglstu Certifisd Audit Firm

Chartared Certifisd Accountants and Authorized Auditors

Kan i i : i ]
Notes to Financial Statements
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
USD USD
8. Equity Share Capital
(2) Issued, Subscribed and Fully Pald
62,997,917 (315t March 2024: 62,997,917 shares) Equity Shares of ETB 10 sach 27,019,992 27,019,992
(b) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their
subsidiaries! associates
Kanoria Chemicals & Industries Limited, holding company
62,997,916 (315t March 2024: 62,997,916) Equity Shares of ETB 10 each 27,019,992 27,019,992
(€) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
As at 31st March 2028 As at 313t March 2024
— = —
Name of the shareholders Number “ “"t’;:: in the Number % l}h{zl;:ﬁ n
Kanoria Chemicals & Industries Limited 62,997,916 99.999997 62997916  99.999997
(d) Shares reserved for issue under oplions
No Shares have been reserved for issue under options and K for the sale of shares/disi as al
the Balance Sheet date.
(€) None of the securities are convertible into shares at the end of the reporting period,
As at 31st March 202§ 31st March 2024
USD UsD
9. Other Equity
Retained Eamings:
Balance as per last Account (15,965,835) (13,982,309)
Add: Profit/(loss) for the year (3,672,045) (1,983,526)
(19,637,880) (15.965.835)
_Non-Current  __ Current __Non-Current _ Current
10. Non Current Borrowings
Term Loan
From Bank (Secured)
from Exim Bank 11,392,587 2,207,937 13,600,524 2,023,942
Secured by First charge on whole of the assets and properties of the Company and
corporate guarantee of Holding Company. This loan carries interest @ 6M LIBOR
+300 bps
from Development Bank of Ethiopia 61,222 183,666 1,077,285 421,675
Secured by First pari passu charge on whole of the assets and properties of the
Company, repayable in twenty one instalments every four months beginning from
31t Oct, 2019, This loan carries interest @11.5%
from Holding Company (Ui ed) 12,972,544 9,150,128
24,426,352 2,391,603 23,827,937 2,445,618
Amount Disclosed under Other Financial Liabilities (Note 11) (2,391,603) (2,445,618)
24,426,352 - 23.821.931 -
11, Other Financial Liabilities
Leasehold land obligation payable 334,468 12,864 797,434 29,535
Interest accrued 90,958 135,801
Payable to Holding Company 1,824,677 1,658,213
Project liabilities * -
Employee related liabilities 160,999 179,017
Other liabilities 162,684 156,399
334,468 2,252,182 797,434 2,158,964
—
31st March 2028 31st March 2024
USD USD
12. Borrowings
Pre-Shipment Working Capital Loan (Secured)
from Development Bank of Ethiopia
Secured by First pari passu charge on whole of the assets and properties of the
Company,
Working Capital Short term loan from DBE - o
Working Capital Short term loan from CBO . 425,309.21
Current maturities of Long term debts (Refer Note 10) 2,391,603 2,445,617.63
13. Trade Payable
Total outstanding dues of Micro and small enterprises % &
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro and small enterprises
816,149
T
Note: Trade Payable Ageing Schedule is given in separate page ;" i [
u\ ey \
14, Other Current Liabilities y f ‘ r(\“ cor B - . W\
Statutory liabilities 414,003 ,y“ﬁiﬁw" M o }‘
Customers' Credit Balances 369541 4/ Gofam & & 292C S f’ e
783,544 B8 5707%, 09", i Y Y
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FY 2024-25

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 1 More than 3| 31st March
Not Due year 1-2 years 2-3 years years 2025
i. MSME - - - - - -
ii. Others 417,265.41 341,516.26 | 57,367.57 - - 816,149
iii. Disputed dues-MSME - e - - - -
iv. Disputed dues-Others - , 5 - . s
Total 417,265.41 341,516.26 | 57,367.57 - = 816,149
Trade Payable Ageing Schedule FY 2023-24
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 1 More than 3 315t2 gg;rch
Not Due year 1-2 years 2-3 years years
i. MSME - - - = & -
ii. Others 107,779.55 | 693,144.31 - 117,983.29 - 918,907.14
iii. Disputed dues-MSME - c - - * -
iv, Disputed dues-Others - . = 2 - s
Total 107,779.55 | 693,144.31 - 117,983.29 - 918,907.14
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Kanoria Africa Textiles Private Limited Company
Notes to Financial Statements
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
USD USD
15. Revenue From Operations
(a) Sale of Products
Fabric 8,003,439 11,309,621
Yarn 344,669 326,876
Garments 514,266 1,230,567
8,862,375 12,867,064
Other Operating Revenues
Miscellaneous Sales 126,555 193,785
Total 8,988,929 13,060,850
16. Other Income
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 937,873 91,026
Liability No Longer Required W/Back* 410,034 697,648
Miscellaneous Income 558 1,257
1,348,465 789,931
* Includes USD 405,667.82(USD 657,776.65 as on 31 Mar 2024) representing
waiver of liability given by suppliers for raw materials imported in the same
accounting period.
17. Cost of Raw Material Consumed
Cotton 2,758,042 3,935,799
Chemical 1,118,642 985,438
Yam 1,039,509 881,324
Garment Accessories 40,080 91,678
4,956,273 5,894,238
18. Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Finished Goods
Fabric 774,869 2,176,088
Yarn 72,422 23,526
Garments 264,223 217,310
1,111,513 2,416,923
Work-in-Progress
Fabric 672,130 388,012
Yarn 737,879 431,232
Others - 1,391
1,410,009 820,636
Inventory at the end of the year
Finished Goods
Fabric 942,960 774,869
Yam 4,514 72,422
Garments 72,791 264,223
1,020,265 1,111,513
Work-in-Progress
Fabric 526,425 672,130
Yamn 441,005 737,879
Others % .
967,430 1,410,009
Change in inventory
Finished Goods 91,248 1,305:_‘_1_1_9'
Work-in-Progress 442,579 W_,,‘-;’;-,—'r"(ﬁ@j FELT ™
Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 533,827 % ‘:.:; N1716,03%41 4 ;% f{\(\\\\
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Kanoria Africa Textiles Private Limited Company
Notes to Financial Statements
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
USD USD
19. Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages, Bonus & Gratuity etc. 1,887,600 2,201,064
Contribution to Provident Fund 52,609 79,559
Welfare Expenses 333,440 357,055
2,273,650 2,637,677
20. Finance Costs
Interest expense 1,456,851 1,872,844
Interest expense-Holding Company 483,435 314,522
Corporate guarantee fee-Holding Company 166,464 187,634
Other borrowing Costs 303,998 416,353
Interest expense (EIIDE) - Prior Period . R
2,410,748 2,791,353
21. Other Expenses
Consumption of Stores & Spare parts etc. 870,300 909,999
Other Manufacturing Expenses 2,257 7,881
Power & Fuel 430,748 593,368
Repairs to -
Plant & Machinery 46,993 45,701
Building 2,760 2,143
Rates & Taxes 2,637 1,213
Rent 44,852 90,159
Insurance 52,695 52,954
Legal and Professional Charges 45,343 37,068
Miscellaneous Expenses 815,647 503,023
Social Welfare Exp 3,584 -
Freight, Handling & Other Selling Expenses 74,791 77,732
Sundry Balances W/off - -
Travelling Expenses 15,010 26,817
Charity & Donations 4,834 2,901
Audit fee 9,946 17,002
2,422,396 2,367,960

Kanoria Africa Textiles Private Limited Company

Notes to Financial Statements

USD USD

22. Related parties transactions
KPL International Ltd
Purchase of Materials - 54,408
Balance due to - 117,983
Kanoria Chemicals & Industries Ltd
Interest on Loan 483,435 314,522
Corporate guarantee fee 166,464 187,634
Balance due to 14,797,220 10,808,341},

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

et Fh 1
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